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Financial Highlights

Sales
Gross Margin
Income Taxes
Net Earnings
Return on Beginning Equity
Per Share:
Earnings
Primary
Fully Diluted
Cash Dividends
As ol January 31:
Shareholders of Record
Total Number ol Employees
Shares Outstanding**
Frimary
Fully Diluted

Change  Two Year
From 1994 CGR’ Fiscal 1995
+ 16% +25% §7.075. 442
+ 17% + 28% 1,763,247
+ 5% + 38% 126,080
+ 1% +31% $ 226,027

15.92%

2% + 26% £1.41
2% 245 $1.36
+ L.:‘In:ll I".}"}l\ &-‘. ] L.}L]
+16%  +23% 11,299
+#19%  +24% 44,546
v 4%+ 4% 160,453
+ 3%+ 6% 171,351

Fiscal 1994
$6.110,521
1,512,544
119,971

& 2235360

25.59%

$1.44
51.39
$.175
9,765
37,555
154,026

165,922

Fiscal 1993
$4.538.001
1,081,284
66,538

S 131,786

17.97%

% .BO
% .89
$.160
7470
28,543
147,398
153,233

* LGR = Compound Growth Rae

EBITDA

Pre-tax Income
+ Interest

+ Depreciation
+ Amortization

= Total

** Weighted average in thousands

. adjusted lor a 2-for-1 stock split distributed March 31, 1994

Change  Two Year
From 1994  CGR’ Fiscal 1995
+ 2% +33% $ 352,107
+ 36% + 44% 38,040
+ 37% + 36% 150,011
NM + 4% 206
#12%  +35% § 540,454

Fiscal 1994

$ 343,531
27873
109,647
2495

$ 481,346

Fiscal 1993
% 198,324
18,278
80,530

272

$ 297 404

* CGR = Compound Growth Rate

**NM = Not Meaningiul

EBITDA: This acronym stands [or Earnings Belore Interest, Taxes, Depreciation, and Amonization. It is not an alternative measure of operaning results
as derermined in accordance with generally accepted accounung prnciples. However, it is useful in evaluating the imherent profuability of an enterprise
[t measures the earmngs generated before taxes, and adds back the non-cash charges for depreciation and amontization, and the linancing costs o interes!
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Rosher 1. Sericlland

Dear Shareholders:

Lowe's enterprise is based in the belief that oppor-
tunity shared is opportunity multiplied

We describe our customers and employees, the
communities where we work, our suppliers, and the rest
ol Lowe's shareholders as our partners-in-interest; they
are also Lowe's partners in opportunity, that intangible
but essential component ol every success story ever lived
As we nurture and develop Lowe’s opportunity in our
constantly-changing marketplace, we strengthen our
relationship with Lowe's partners and expand our loun-
dation for shared enrichment

We had L‘N|"k.'l.'lt'l.| 1995 to be our best Vear ever,
exceeding our very successiul 1994 in both sales and
earnings. Sales did increase by 16%, topping 57 billion,
but when it came to earnings, 1995 proved to be a less
satislactory year than '94. A more cautious consumer
mood, higher interest rates early in the year, and a LIFO
charge of $8.3 million compared to $435,000 in 1994
held operating earnings to a 1% gain

In the past five years we have been translorming
Lowe's into a chain of large stores, and our selling space
has tripled to more than 24 million square feet. At year
end, our big stores represented 71% ol our total store
count, up from 15% in 1990. They accounted lor 79% ol
our sales and 80% of operating earnings, up from 14%
when the decade began. This performance is the more
impressive because the smaller stores that we still operate
were and are the best ol their class

We are committed to having 600 stores in the year
2000, In our increasingly competitive environment, we
are augmenting our strategic advantage by doing more ol
what we do best: building bigger and better Lowe's stores
wherever we identify opportunity; stalling them with
more qualilied employees (and more qualified employees);

supporting them with efficient distribution centers;

Lronard G. Hernng

constantly upgrading our investment in technology; and
extending our outreach o Lowe's customers and commu
nities through every available medium

In 1996, the oldest Baby Boomers are turning fifty
MNumbering roughly seventy million nationally, the Baby
Boom generation currently accounts for hall of Lowe's
business. They are reaching their peak earning years,
which correspond to years ol peak home ownership, so
their impornance to Lowe’s isn't likely to wane within the
[oreseeable future, On their heels (and now stepping out
ol their shadow) are eighty million Gen X'ers, a huge and
diverse group whose economic orientation and consump-
tion patterns will be keys to retail growth well mto the
next century. Lowe's everyday value pricing and time
elficient destination stores are proving highly successlul at
meeting the demands of Nineties consumers from both
the Boomer and X'er generations

What is Lowe's outlook on opportunity? We
believe that retrospectively, 1995 will prove to have been
a year for gathering strength, a year during which we
gained market share and consolidated energy for the next
push forward, The home improvement industry contin-
ues to grow, and is predicted by the Home Improvement
Research Institute to reach nearly $170 billion annually
by the end of the decade. Add to that new housing
expenditures in the annual range of $75 billion and a
consumer durables industry that might reasonably expect
to see $88 billion annually, and the outlook for Lowe’s is
bright indeed.

Since the inttiation of our store restructuring
program in 1991, only 40% of our growth has been in
new markets. In 1995, on schedule, we completed that
planned restructuring, Starting in 1996, at least 75% ol
our new store investment will go into new markets. Ol

the sixty store projects planned for 1996, forty-five will



be in new markets and fifteen will be relocations, for an
added 6.7 million square feet of selling space.

As our expansion pushes outward, Lowe’s stores
will be supported by new state-of-the-art regional
distribution centers. Our Texas d.c. began shipping on
March 1; the new Statesville, North Carolina facility will
be up and running later this year; and our Valdosta,
Georgia d.c. will be completed early in 1997,

Our family of employees now numbers more than
45,000, It has nearly tripled since 1990, and we expect it
to top 60,000 in 1998. We are proud to share Lowe’s
opportunity with so many new co-workers during this
exciting phase in our company's development.

Naturally, as our base expands in size and scope,
the leadership of Lowe’s evolves and grows commensu-
rately. In recent months, several very talented members of
our senior management team have been promoted to new
challenges and responsibilities. Larry Stone, who began
his career with Lowe's in 1969 and has worn many
different hats during Lowe’s transformation into a big-
store chain, is our new executive vice president for store
operations. Bill Warden, who was Lowe’s outside legal
counsel for 17 years before joining the company in 1993,
is our new executive vice president and chief administra-
tive officer.

Cliff Oxford, who has been with Lowe’s since 1984
and most recently served as senior vice president for
corporate relations, has become senior vice president for
corporate and human development. Richard Elledge, our
chiel accounting officer since 1991, is now also a senior
vice president and assistant corporate secretary. Greg
Bridgeford, who has been with Lowe's since 1982, is now
senior vice president and general merchandise manager in
charge of fashion products. Greg Wessling, whose career
with Lowe's began in 1974, is our senior vice president
and general merchandise manager in charge of functional
products. Lee Herring, who is responsible for distribution,
logistics, and product replenishment, has also become a
senior vice president. Lee joined Lowe's in 1976.

For more than fifteen years, Lowe’s has published a
comprehensive Code of Ethics which our officers, manag-
ers, and supervisory personnel are annually required to
read, understand, and communicate to all employees,
signing a Statement of Compliance thereto. Our objective
is an annual reaffirmation of Lowe’s commitment to the

highest principles of business conduct.

Also, for several years Lowe's has required all
vendors and suppliers to enter into a Master Standard
Buying Agreement. Specifically included in this agree-
ment are prohibitions against the use of child labor and
penal labor in the manufacture or distribution of any
products purchased by Lowe’s.

At the suggestion of a shareholder, we have de-
cided to include our strong policy stand against child and
penal labor in our Code of Ethics. This action gives
greater visibility to this policy, and will be another source
of pride for our employees.

During 1995 we also welcomed Claudine Malone
to Lowe's Board of Directors. A former professor at the
Harvard Business School, Claudine is chairman of the
Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond and president of
Financial and Management Consulting, Inc. of McLean,
Virginia. Her retail and financial expertise will be a
significant augmentation to our board.

There is great continuity in Lowe's. For five de-
cades we've been building our company on principles
such as low-cost operating, value pricing, and employee
ownership, and success has rewarded our fidelity to these
concepts. Yet Lowe’s has also changed tremendously
through the years— from small stores to big stores, from
a contractor customer franchise to DIY'ers, from the G.L
generation to Baby Boomers and GenX'ers, Our constant
goal has been to identify opportunities in the market-
place, and to capitalize on those opportunities for the
benefit of all our partners-in-interest.

In a 1959 interview, Lowe’s founding father, Carl
Buchan, said “The one mistake [ have always made has
been to underestimate the potential of the market.” He
would have appreciated the sophisticated market under-
standing which today's technology has made possible.
That understanding of Lowe’s customers influences every
policy and decision we make, from long-range strategic
planning to real-time responsiveness on our sales floors.
It is what drives our continuing evolution and helps us
capitalize on our opportunity.

For further analysis of that opportunity as we
approach the new millenium, we invite you to read on.

We salute and thank all Lowe's friends, and we
look forward to sharing the harvest of opportunity which
is the enrichment of our partnership.

Cordial good wishes,

Ot L SHALA

Robert L. Strickland
Chairman ol the Board

mq‘{?f‘:ﬁ/méi

Leonard G. Herring
President and Chiel Executive Officer
Morth Wilkeshoro, NC



A Message from Bob Tillman

At our corporate sales meeting early in 1995, we
talked a lot about how Lowe's corporate culture is
EY Hl‘n [['I:L" a5 Wi I't"‘-J"li'llil] IO |:'|.'I||IL’J.""- 1TV QLT Il !\.L‘I [1Ii|.\. £
We are serving todav's customers with better trained,
more highly skilled employees than ever belore. We
recognize that as our customers’ needs— and our em
plovees’ expectations— change and grow, Lowe's man-
agement must keep pace by updating our product
assortment, our services, and our stores. Our policies,
our methods, and even our fundamental attitudes are not
exempt from the necessity of adaptive change

[hat was last year's message. In February of this
year we met again, this time to unveil many new pro-
grams, to see and hear a number of exciting new prod-
ucts, promotions, and presentations, and to discuss new
ieas. We talked about new processes and procedures,
new structures and organizations, and new policies and
people. It was a continuation of our theme of Lowe's
evolving corporate culture: alter all, the essence of our
culture is what we do, the way we do it, and the reasons
why we do it that way

This has been a good time to take on 1ssues ol
culture and change, because Lowe's is prospering. As the
saying goes, “The time to fix the rool is when the sun 1s
shining™— and the sun is definitely up there, despite an
occasional transient cloud

S0 how do we capitalize on Lowe's opportunity?
What are we doing to improve our position, to garner a
greater market share? Do we know what customers are
looking lor, this year? Centainly we do. Customers in
1996 are looking lor the same things they've always
wanted. Value tops the list— and. ol course, real value
includes competitive prices. Customers also want appro-
priate assortments, and good service: not lip service, but
real service

In recent years, the value gap has closed. Senous
competitors in our industry have achieved basic parity in
pricing and selection. The next battleground is customer
service— and that's why our locus lor 1996 is Superior

Customer satislaction

Superior Customer Satisfaction stants with people,

not policies. As “form lollows function” in the natural
world, so Lowe’s policies should be shaped naturally by
the interactions of our employees with our customers in
our stores. Therefore, as we develop systems and imple-
ment policies, we are listening Lo our customers, our
employees, and our vendors to better understand what
they need, what makes them happy, and what we can
Lli'l |‘h'|1|_‘|:'

Our goal of Superior Customer Sansfaction can
only be achieved on Lowe's sales floors. This part of our
corporate culture isn’t an executive program; it isn't an
imposed vision or a professionally articulated mission
statement. [t must be built from within, and from the
ground up. It requires true leadership, which exists not
in position but in action

| have no doubt that Lowe's 45,000 leaders will
rise to this challenge, and 1o all the challenges and

l'l|'|'|'5ﬂl TLATITIES 1n ] owe's luture

Do

Robert L. Tillman

Best wishes,

Chief Operating Officer




“To be h_clijm at home is the

Outlook

Opp%?tunity

A1 Lowe's, we help make people happy at home. It's been our
job for lifty years— a good job, and we're good at it. What it takes o
be good at our job, however, has changed more than a litle over time
We are no longer a handlul of small
stores selling hardware and building

supplies mainly to Carolina

ulﬁmm I‘ESHII ﬂfﬂ." mﬂbiﬁﬂﬂ, contractors. Lowe's in the mid-
the E"d to which eve-r); Mineties is an interactive network ol

ent rise II l r tﬂﬂds 99 45,000 well-educated, highly

motivated people helping millions ol

— Samuel Johnson l sophisticated consumers realize their

personal vision of the American home

Lowe's growth through the years has been driven by
opportumity We strive Lo seize apportanty whenever it presents
isell, whatever shape it takes—new customer needs, new locations,
new services, or new technologies, While our emphasis on value and
low-cost operation has remained constant, almost everything else
about Lowe's has evolved in response to developing opportunities.
Our pledge to Lowe's investors is to be always on the lookout lor
opportunity—and to keep them informed on the outlook!

lhe Lowe's that we know today got its start in 1946. The years
following World War Il offered a tremendous opportunity to provide
building materials and appliances lor the newly forming households
of veterans who were eager to find jobs, marry their sweethearts, and
get on with lile. Lowe's customers in those days were members ol the
G.1. generation (thirty million strong, today) and, a lew years later,
the Silent generation (forty million). No strangers to shortages,
rationing, and self-denial, they appreciated Lowe’s resourcefulness in
supplying products that were scarce. They were thrilled to be able 10
buy a commode: they didn’t care how much water it used, or how
much noise it made, and they knew they could have any color they

wanted, as long as it was white!



* Tallahassee, Florida— Karen ' &

. and Charlie Richardson will do . '3

* anything for a home, from -
pressure washing to landscape |

- gardening to interior design. As '
the owners of K's House
Dressing sirice 1989, there’s no |
aisle at Lowe’s that they don't =
know like the back of their
hands. Lowe’s home decor _
assortments and huge garden
center are important to them,
but what they value most is
their relationship with store
manager Kem Smith. Says
Karen, “I was redecorating a
country club and I was buying
things like 22 identical lamps.
One day I needed a lot of vents
that were a strange size, Kem
got on the phone, called three
other stores, and said Your
vents will be here Friday. Then _
he took me back to shipping and * =
receiving and introduced me, so i |
I would know who I was dealing "
with when my orders started
coming in. He knows everybody
in that store by name.”




“A nation of homeowners, of people who won a
real share in their own land, is unconquerable.”
— Franklin D. Roosevelt

T he Baby Boomers who were born into those new postwar
households now constitute hall of Lowe’s customer franchise. Their
massive numbers alone— seventy million nationwide— ensured that
from the moment they learned to say “l want,” they have had the rapt
attention of marketers in all sectors of the economy.

Boomers are a well-educated generation, and they have been
exposed to more diverse cultural influences than previous generations.
As a result, they are more demanding and sophisticated consumers
than their parents. Their sense of individuality was honed on divisive
issues such as the Vietnam conflict, civil rights, drugs, women'’s lib,

and the sexual revolution,

distancing them from

Home Ownership Rate vs. Mortgage Rate Trends
llustrated on a quarterly basis through 3rd quarter 1995

the teamwork ethic that

:’5;“ ’;‘;ﬂ“ was an important part
of their parents’ war
8507 19,00 effort. This made
64.8 + Boomers independent
64.6 1 18.50 and comparatively
self-indulgent.
il T When Baby
64.2+ 1750 Boomers started coming of
64.0- r::rship age as consumers, Lowe’s
e +7.00 recognized an opportunity
e _ to free ourselves from the
630 1993 | | 1994 | | 1995 | Sl cyclicality of housing starts

Sousce: Bureaw of the Census, Currtnt Housing Repers: Departmant of Housing and Urban Develapmen! by developing a new
identity as a home
improvement retailer marketing directly to consumers. Modern
information-gathering and demographic techniques enabled us to
know more about our expanding marketplace than ever before,
influencing every strategic decision from the size and location of our

stores to the merchandise assortment on our racks.



le, North Carolina— Jake

and Mamie Lee Wilson have

been married for 52 years,

and they‘ve been Lowe’s
customers almost as long.
Says Mamie Lee, “We built
our house here in 1954. We
hauled all the materials in
a truck from North
Wilkesboro [fifty miles
away], because at that time
there was no Lowe’s store
around here. Jake went to
get the doors for the house,
and I think we needed
about sixty of them. He
came back with mahogany
doors. I didn't want
mahogany doors; I wanted
birch doors! He said, ‘If you
want birch doors you'll have
to load these doors back up
and take them to Lowe’s
yourself!”” Says Jake,
smiling, “Well, I helped her
load a few of them.” With
some exceptions, the house
today preserves the original
decor. Mamie says “If you
want something to last

Fn FF

forever, go to Lowe’s.
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Mamie Lee laughs with Jake
as she holds.the nightgown she
worefon their ‘wedding night.




“Home is where you keep your stuff while you’re out
getting other stuff.”

Source: Bureau of the Census,
Current Population Reports

Top Ten World Powers

of DIY Retailing

United States

— George Carlin

T he households established by Lowe's Boomer customers
differed from their parents’ households in a number of important
ways. Boomers had more money and less time. More women worked
outside the home; more adults were single parents. Boomers had
grown up with credit and were not uncomfortable in debt. Their fiscal
philosophy was “If you've got it, spend it; il you don't, borrow it and
then spend it.” As consumers, they increasingly demanded broader
merchandise assortments, greater shopping convenience, and (because
they didn't have time to wait for sales) everyday competitive pricing.

The 1980's saw the emergence of the “category killers"™—
specialty retailers offering very broad product assortments and
consistently low prices, such as Toys “R" Us and Circuit City. In
Lowe's industry, the concept of warehouse retailing was developed
most quickly and successfully by Home Depot. Here was an
opportunity for a new Lowe's store format—but one which entailed
conversion of the majority of our more than 200 stores.

Competition creates opportunity for those who
know how to use it. The law of the retail universe is
that strong contenders gain market share, weak ones
fall by the wayside, and the customer gets what he
wants. The recent years of accelerating evolution and
escalating competition in our industry have been
Lowe’s period of greatest growth. Looking ahead, we
see opportunities for continued growth in both market
size and market share.



Piedmont North Carolina — Cheri
Johnson never forgets a favor. Several
years ago, her neighbor Homer
Humphreys gave her a job when she
needed one. Time passed; Cheri went to
work up North, then moved back to her
old neighborhood. To her distress, she
found Homer living on the street. She
decided to build him a house in the cor-
ner of her backyard where there was a
tumbledown old garage. She went to
Lowe’s and bought studs and plywood,
insulation, doors and windows, paint,
and roofing materials. Even with
Homer's help, the project took three
years to complete. Finally, just before
Christmas, Homer moved into his new
home. As for Cheri, she’s now a Lowe’s
stockholder..“I have nearly $30,000 in
receipts from Lowe’s,” she says. “I figure
there are thousands like me out here,
and the trend is for people to put more
money into their homes. So it should be
a good investment.”




“A house is the only regularly recurring symbol of the
whole human body in dreams.”
— Sigmund Freud

I s there anyone alive who doesn't know that in 1996 the
oldest Baby Boomers are turning fifty? Every day [or the next ten years,
ten thousand Boomers will celebrate the big Five-Oh. The press can't
seem Lo get enough assessments of the probable impact of this
phenomenon. It has become a milestone around our necks, Get over
it, people: fifty isn't Walter Brennan, it’s Mick Jagger. Baby Boomers

may not be as heavily into

Lowe’s Total Market Potential snowboards as Generation X,
sl Home Center Market but they know their way
Building Contractor around a motherboard, and
New Housing R&R* DIY Durables  Total they're still a long way from
1999e r;: 5:; $: fl I 78 I 309 shulfleboard!
:::g: :; ﬁ :ﬂ :‘E :g: Boomers are just
1996e 63 42 100 58 263 now entering their vears ol
19895p 60 40 94 56 250 i '
1994 61 38 91 49 239 highest earning power and
1993 52 36 83 a1 212 o
1992 a5 33 77 36 191 greatest disposable personal
:g:; 2: g: :‘2 g; ::: income. They are taking up
1985 40 25 53 25 143 » reins of eover ;
1980 24 16 28 14 P the reins of government
1977  $27 $11 $28 $10 S 76 and moving into positions
* R & A = Repair and Remodeling e = eslimate  p = preliminary of t P management in

Source: Home Improvement Research Institule; Management Horizons
private enterprise. As

they once redefined young
adulthood, so will they dictate the terms of their maturity. Inevitably,
our institutions will rellect the passing of the leadership torch,

On the Boomers' personal agenda, however, home ownership
has occupied a place at the top as consistently as in any previous
generation. Having paired oll and “nested"— some later than usual,
some more than once— they are now in the process ol trading up 10

homes that better suit their lifestyles and express their tastes.

10



Stuarts Draft, Virginia— When builder Troy Rutherford first came here in 1980, the
town didn't even have a stoplight. Then Hershey decided to build a plant, and Troy
started buying land. Pam Rutherford, Troy’s wife, is a realtor, and together they have
developed a subdivision called Forest Springs Estates, not far from the farm where they
breed ostriches. Troy says, “We kept buying options on land when our competitors
didn’t. We built efficiently and kept our costs down. Lowe’s has played a big part in our
success, supplying us with materials at low prices whenever and wherever we need
them.” A Lowe’s representative visits the Rutherfords’ job sites every day, and Troy can
call a special number at the store to get immediate personal attention. He says “I'm
very happy in my partnership with Lowe’s.”




“A man builds a house in England with the expectation of
living in it and leaving it to his children; while we shed
our houses in America as easily as a snail does his shell.”

Source: Roper Starch Worldwide, Ine

Source! Bureau of the Cengus, Currant Mousing Repovis

12

— Harriet Beecher Stowe

B - 1972, as Baby Boomers began [looding the real estate
market, there were 2.4 million housing starts— the largest number
since World War I1. Many of those were multi-family dwellings,
encouraged by government subsidies. Nowadays, Boomers are in the
process of trading up to single-family homes, to bigger homes, and to
homes in communities where they think they want to stay for a while.
The National Association of Home Builders reports that two-thirds of
new single-family homes are now being sold to trade-up buyers.
Subject to regional economies and fluctuations in mortgage rates,
trade-up moves will probably dominate the market and housing
construction at least through the end of the decade.

As the housing stock of more vigorous building boom years
begins 1o age, opportunity grows in the remodeling sector. Remodeling
expenditures totaled $40 billion in 1995, and are expected 1o reach
$49 billion by the year 2000. A survey conducted by the National
Association of Home Builders found that homeowners undertaking
remodeling projects are frequently seeking to incorporate
contemporary amenities— such as home theatres and exercise
rooms— into their existing houses. Kitchen remodelers go for
environmentally correct trash compactors and “smart” appliances;
owners of older homes [requently choose to add windows and remove
walls for a lighter, more airy feeling.

Sales ol existing homes also create opportunity for Lowe’s, as
home buyers customize newly acquired dwellings to their tastes and
needs. We have found existing home sales 1o be a useful leading
indicator [or our business, especially if we allow a few months for

home buyers to recover from closing costs and moving expenses.
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Gross Domestic Product,

Dis ble Personal Income
and Savings Rate
Dollars in Billions

Savings  CPI-U*

Rate as % 1982-84
Year GOP opPl of DP1 =100
1995p $7.113.2 $52688 4.2%  §1524
1984 67384 49593 41 148.2
1993 B3478 47067 41 1445
1992 60258 45002 55 1403
1991 57371 42305 47 136.2
1990 55678 40505 43 1307
1980 52668 37870 40 1240
1888 49082 35482 44 1168.3
1987 45445 32895 43 1138
1986 42777 31315 6O 1096
1985 40536 29430 64 1076
1980 $2.7421 $19529 79%  § 824
* Gonsumer Price Index - Urban
p = prekminary
Sogre. U S Departmen of Cofirmpics. Buriii of Foonome Analysa:

Burmas of Labor Slafistcy

“Dine on onions, but have a home; reduce your food
and add to your dwelling.”

— The Talmud

E ven in periods ol high employment and real wage growth,
consumer confidence can be shaken by fears of inflation and rising
interest rates. That's what happened in the first half of 1995, when the
nation's housing markets shifted into neutral. Since then, mortgage
rates have dipped again and consumer confidence has risen,
apparently unaffected by talk about high debt levels. Today's
consumers tend to focus more on the manageability of monthly
payments than on their overall indebtedness. The current low interest
rate environment makes it possible for them to carry debt comlortably.

A comparison of personal consumption expenditures by
category since the start of this decade reveals great stability. Food,
which accounted for 21% of personal expenditures twenty years ago,
had declined to 16% by 1991 and has dipped to 15% for the past two
years. Medical care, which made news by rising from 11% to 15% of
personal outlays between 1980 and 1990, has remained at 15% ever
since. The good news is that there is no bad news here: il housing
expenditures continue at 15%, and outlays for household operations
stay at 6%, there will still be an increase in real dollars spent as
household incomes rise.

What opportunities has Lowe's found on the other side of the
Baby Boom? There are eighty million members of the generation called
(regrettably) “X.” As targeted consumers, they have repeatedly denied
easy access 1o marketers, just as they have resisted cultural
identification with specific issues or events. That doesn't mean that
ultimately their list of priorities won't look a lot like their parents’ by
the time they reach their peak earning years. But Lowe's doesn't expect
to win their hearts and minds with the same marketing techniques.
Through programs such as our NASCAR sponsorship and our Internet
presence on the World Wide Web (hup:/www.lowes.com), we are

establishing a relationship with the next generation of homeowners.

“If I ever go looking for my heart’s desire again, I won’t look
any further than my own back yard; because if it isn’t there, I
never really lost it to begin with.”

— Judy Garland as Dorothy in “The Wizard of OZ”



San Francisco, California—
Although the nearest Lowe’s
store is a thousand miles away,
Bay area composer Marshall
Crutcher is part of a Lowe’s
community. With his wife,
Katita Waldo, a principal
dancer for the San Francisco
Ballet, Marshall recently
bought a townhouse built in
1906. While he was doing
some online surfing one day,
his search engine turned up

a hot link to Lowe’s home
page on the World Wide Web
(http://www.lowes.com). Now
he visits our site at least once
a month. “I've downloaded
some great stuff,” he says.
“The How-To clinics are
especially useful, because we're
starting to fix up the house
whenever we have a spare
moment. Last month, one of
the clinics was ‘How to Hang
Wallpaper,” which I read just in
time: it told me how I should
have prepped the plaster!”




Merchandise Sales Trends
Daollars in Millions
Total Sales  Change
6-Year CGR From 1994
Category
1. Structural Lumber +10% (10%)
2. Building Commodities
& Millwork 10 + 9
3. Home Decorating &
Hlumination +28 +28
4. Kitchen, Bathroom
& Laundry +24 +21
5. Heating, Cooling &
Water Systems +21 +27
6. Home Entertainment +16 +13
7. Yard, Patio & Garden +25 +32
8. Tools +27 +22
9. Special Order Sales +10 + 6
Totals +18% +16%

Base Year
1995 1994 1993 1989
Total Total Total Total

Sales % Sales % Sales % | Sales %
% 823 12 % 9]l 15 & 745 16 |5 455 17
1,331 19 1,225 20 a7a 21 761 29
1,524 22 1.195 20 807 158 346 13
846 12 701 11 498 11 237 9
443 [n) 348 G 267 & 144 5
305 4 271 + 218 5 125 5
074 14 736 12 493 11 261 10
465 6 382 & 259 i 112 4
364 35 342 & 272 & 210 2]
57,075 100 56,111 100 54,538 100 [S2,651 100

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
of Lowe’s Companies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of Lowes Companies, Inc. and subsidiaries as of January 31,
1996, 1995 and 1994, and the related consolidated statements of
current and retained earnings and cash llows for the fiscal years
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are [ree of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the linancial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated linancial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Lowes
Companies, Inc. and subsidiaries at January 31, 1996, 1995 and
1994, and the resulis of their operations and their cash flows for
the fiscal years then ended in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Deloitte & Touche e
Charlotte, North Carolina
February 20, 1996

(March 4, 1996 as 1o the
fourth paragraph of Note 14)
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Management's Responsibility for Financial Reporting

Lowes management is responsible for the preparation, integrity
and fair presentation of its published financial statements. These
statements have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles and, as such, include amounts
based on managements best estimates and judgments. Lowes
management also prepared the other information included in the
annual report and is responsible for its accuracy and consistency
with the financial statements.

The Company’s financial statements have been audited by
the independent accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche Lie, which
was given unrestricted access to all financial records and related
data. The Company believes that all representations made to the
independent auditors during their audit were valid and appropri-
ate. Deloitte & Touche’s audit report presented here provides an
independent opinion upon the fairness of the financial state-
ments. The Company maintains a system of internal control over
financial reporting, which is designed 1o provide reasonable
assurance o Lowe’s management and Board of Directors regard-
ing the preparation of reliable published financial statements.
The system includes appropriate divisions of responsibility,
established policies and procedures (including a code of conduct
1o foster a strong ethical climate) which are communicated
throughout the Company, and the careful selection, training and
development of our people. Internal auditors monitor the
operation of the internal control system and repon findings and
recommendations to management and the Board ol Directors,
and corrective actions are taken to address control deliciencies
and other opportunities for improving the system as they are
identified. The Board, operating through its audit committee,
provides oversight to the financial reporting process.

Leonard G. Herring
President & CEQ

Richard D. Elledge
5r. VP & Chiefl Accounting Officer



Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

INTRODUCTION

This discussion summarizes the significant factors affecting
Lowe’s consolidated operating results, financial condition, and
liquidity/cash flows during the three-year period ended January
31, 1996 (i.e., Fiscal 1995, 1994, and 1993). This discussion
should be read in conjunction with the Letter to Shareholders,
financial statements, and [inancial statement footnotes included
in this annual report.

During these three years, Lowes has been effecting a
major transformation of the company, from a chain of small
stores designed principally to serve new home builders, woa
chain of *big box" home improvement stores designed 1o serve
the larger and faster growing retail consumer market for home
improvement. To this end, in 1991 we recorded a $71.3 million
restructuring charge to cover expected expenses incident to this
strategy, over the four years ending with fiscal 1995. The
following table presents highlights of the changes implemented
by this policy over the last three years:

End of Fiscal
1995 1994 1993 1992
Stores 365 336 31l 303

Sales Floor Square Footage (M) 240 186 142 100

Average Store Size (1314 55K 46K 33K

$7.075
$ 226 § 224 $ 132

§6,110 54,338 $3.B46
$ 85

Sales (M)
Met Earnings (M)
Sharcholders' Equity (M)~ $1,657 $1420 § 874 § 733

These three years have been arguably the most successful
in the history of the company, and our transformation will
continue.

We ended 1995 with 365 stores and 24 million square
feet of selling space, a 29% increase over 1994 and a 69%
expansion since 1993. Net earnings for 1995 were 3.2% of sales,
return on beginning assets was 7.3%, and return on beginning
shareholders’ equity was 15.9%. These returns are below the
decade-high resulis posted in 1994, Our results in 1994 were
stimulated by favorable interest rate movements which boosted
consumer confidence, and mortgage refinancing which aug-
mented disposable income. Conversely, higher interest rates
and a less positive economic environment dampened growth
in 1995,

Expansion plans for 1996 envision about 60 new stores
with 75% in new markets and the balance in relocations for
approximately 6.7 million square feet of additional retail space.
Approximately one hall of the 1996 projects will be leased and
one hall will be owned.

Merchandise distribution capabilities are a central compo-
nent of Lowe's marketing and operating strategy. At year end, we
operated three distribution centers and eleven smaller suppont
facilities, four of which are reload centers only. In addition, a
new center having approximately 775,000 square feet will be
operational in early 1996, a second center having approximately
950,000 square feet is expected 1o become operational during
third quarter 1996 and a third center having approximately
778,000 square feet is expected to be operational in early 1997.

OPERATIONS

Record sales of $7.1 billion were achieved during 1995,
a 16% increase over 1994 sales of $6.1 billion. Sales for 1994
were 35% higher than 1993 levels. These increases are attribut-
able to customer receptiveness to our large stores with their
dominant inventory assortment, everyday competitive prices and
enhanced customer service.

Gross margin in 1995 moved up slightly, to 24.9% from
24.8% in 1994. Both these years were an improvement over the
23.8% posted in 1993. As Lowe’s opens more large stores each
year, the expanded merchandise selection helps improve gross
margin.

LIFO charges were $8.3 million, $435 thousand, and
£15.5 million for 1995, 1994, and 1993, reducing gross margins
by 12, 1, and 34 basis points, respectively. Note 3 to the
financial statements provides further information.

Selling General and Administrative (SGE&A) expenses
for 1995 were $1.1 billion or 15.9% of sales. SG&A in the two
previous years was 15.4% and 15.8% to sales. 19955 increase
of 50 basis points primarily resulted from store employment
growing faster than the 16% sales growth, and an increase in
credit card expense.

Store opening costs were $49.6 million for 1995. These
costs were $40.7 and $29.3 million for 1994 and 1993, respec-
tively, These costs currently average about $900 thousand per
store, and are expensed, not capitalized.

Depreciation, rellecting continuing fixed asset expansion,
increased 36.8% 1o $150 million. There was a 36% increase for
1994 which was computed from the 1993 base of $80.5 million.
These increases were in line with expectations. Depreciation for
these years as a percentage of sales was 2.1% for 1995 and 1.8%
for 1994 and 1993, which favorably tracks square footage
increases. Approximately one halfl of new stores opened in the
last three years were leased, whereas previously more than one
half were owned.

Employee retirement plans {or 1995 were $46.1 million
or .7% to sales. This cost is consistent with 8% [or each of the
two previous years. See Note 10 to the financial statements for
further disclosure.

Interest costs as a percent of sales are holding relatively
steady at .5% for 1995 and 1994 and 4% for 1993, Interest
totaled $38 million in 1995, $27.9 million for 1994, and $18.3
million for 1993.  Interest costs as represented by capital leases
were $16.9, $7.4, and $2.8 million for 1995, 1994, and 1993,
respectively. See Note 6 to the financial statements lor particu-
lars on long-term indebtedness, and the discussion below on
liquidity and capital resources.

Cash dividends paid to common shareholders were $30.5,
$27.4, and $23.6 million in 1995, 1994, and 1993, respectively.
Lowe’s has paid cash dividends each quarter since becoming a
public company in 1961. At January 31, 1996 there were
11,299 shareholders of record. Please refer to the Stock Perfor-
mance Chart on page 32 for further details on dividends and
stock performance.

BALANCE SHEET MANAGEMENT

Effective i management stems {rom ellicient
logistics and distribution of the “right” merchandise assortments

based on sales plans and forecasts. Inventory turnover is an
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often used performance measurement. (Lowes calculates “turn”
by using cost of sales as the numerator and divides by the
average of beginning inventory plus the subsequent four
quarters’ ending inventories.) In 1995, Lowe’ inventory turned
4.3 times, comparable to 4.7 turns in 1994 and 1993, as sales
fell below expectations in the second half of 1995.

Accounts receivable were $113 million at January 31, 1996
compared to $109 million for 1994 and $49 million for 1993,
A program was in effect through first quarter 1995 wherein
the Company sold an undivided fractional interest in a designated
pool of receivables. Note 2 to the financial statements provides
more detail.

, less accumulated depreciation increased 33% 1o
$1.86 billion for 1995. In 1994 it increased 37% over 1993 levels.
The majority of the increase stems from our expansion program,
including point-of-sale equipment, fixtures, and displays.

Other assets primarily consist of land and buildings relat-
ing to vacated stores which are available for sale or lease, invest-
menis in low income housing, and notes receivable relating to sales
ol excess properties. These vacated properties are carried at their
estimated net realizable value. At January 31, 1996, this value was
approximately $26 million compared to $42 million one year ago.
At year-end, five properties having a book value of approximately
$5.7 million were under contract to be sold. Investments in low
income housing at January 31, 1996 were $13 million compared
to $11 million for the previous year. Notes receivable relating
to sales of excess properties were $9.7 million at year-end, up
4.7 million from the previous year.

Accounts payable, the major financing source for inventory,
financed 52% of 1995 year-end inventory compared to 60% for
1994 and 55% for 1993. The proportions reflect the result of
changes in inventory product mix, sales velocity, and levels of pur-
chases near year end.

Long-term debt, excluding current maturities, at January
31, 1996 was $866.2 million, up 27% from January 31, 1995.
The previous years increase was 15%. These increases were in
line with expectations and are being used to primarily fund our
continuing program for expansion and growth.

The special one-time restructuring charge is addressed in
Note 15 to the financial statements. Charges against the restruc-
turing accrual associated with relocating and closing stores were
£13.8, $19.7, and $19.0 million for 1995, 1994, and 1993, re-
spectively.  Fiscal 1995 was the completion year relating to the
special one-time 1991 restructuring accrual of $71.3 million.

Shareholders’ equity continues to finance the biggest por-
tion of assets. Total shareholders’ equity increased by $236.8 mil-
lion in 1995 and financed 46.6% of assets at January 31, 1996,
This compares 1o 45.7% for 1994 and 39.7 % for 1993, (See Note
11 10 the financial statements for further details and related com-
menis under “working capital” below.)

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
Liquidity and Capital Resources

Primary sources of liquidity are cash [lows from operating
activities and certain financing activities. Information on consoli-
dated cash flows (operating, financing, and investing activities) is
set forth in the Statements of Cash Flows on page 22,

Working capital at January 31, 1996, was $653.8 million.
This compared to $611.3 million and $402.7 million for each of
the two previous years, respectively.

Financing activities in 1994 included the sale of 10,350,000
shares of Lowes common stock under the shelf registration dis-
cussed below. This transaction realized $315.7 million, net of the

18

underwriting discount and other costs. The proceeds were used
to finance the Company’s expansion program and [or general cor-
porate purposes. The schedule set forth below depicts working
capital debt activity (except for debt associated with certain real
property acquisitions in the normal course of business):

In 1995, Lowe’s issued the following long-term debt:

* $100 million aggregate (net $99 million) principal
6.375% Senior Notes, issued in December 1995,

In 1994, Lowe's did not issue any long term debt.

In 1993, Lowe's issued the following long-term debt:

* $32 million medium-term notes issued in February
1993; and

+ $287.5 million aggregate (net $250 million) principal
3% Convertible Subordinated Notes, issued in July 1993,

Lowe’s reduced long term debt as follows:

In 1995, $25.1 million of scheduled repayments

In 1994, $41.5 million of scheduled repayments.

In 1993, $6.3 million of scheduled repayments.

During 1995, 1994, and 1993, the Company entered into
various leases for new store facilities. Several of these leases
were classilied as capital leases, the result of which is to increase
long-term debt. Amounts classified as capital leases (i.e. long-
term debt) were $96.9 million, $104.2 million, and $29.3
million for 1995, 1994, and 1993, respectively.

uses of cash will continue to be investments in new
store facilities. In 1995, capital investment was $637 million (cash
outlays of $520 million plus capital leases of $97 million and like-
kind exchanges of $20 million) which did not include operating
leases of $113 million. Lowe’s 1996 capital budget is targeted at
41 billion, inclusive of approximately $240 million of operating or
capital leases, More than 80% of this planned commitment is for
sloTe expansion.

Present plans are 1o finance 19965 expansion program
through funds from operations, operating leases, issuance of about
%40 million of common stock to the Employee Stock Ownership
Plan, and from external financing,

During 1994, the Company filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission a shell registration statement covering $500
million of *unallocated” debt or equity securities. At January 31,
1996, an uncommitted aggregate of $74 million was available un-
der the shell registration. This registration enables the Company
to issue common stock, preferred stock, senior unsecured debt
securities, or subordinated unsecured debt securities.

Short-term capital needs will be financed through
utilization of Lowe’s bank credit agreements and commercial
paper program, Formal bank credit agreements in place are
discussed in Note 5 to the financial statements.

The ratie of long-term debt 1o equity plus long-term debt
was 34.3%, 32.4%, and 40.4% with fixed charge coverage at 5.8,
6.8, and 6.5 for 1995, 1994, and 1993, respectively.

OTHER

General inflation has not had a material impact on
Lowe’s during the past three years, although as noted above, the
LIFO charge increased to $8.3 million in 1995 from $435
thousand in 1994. Overall inventory inflation was .79%, .07%,
and 2.38% for 1995, 1994, and 1993, respectively. Lumber
products have experienced substantially more volatility than
other merchandise categories, due 1o supply-demand variability,
weather constraints, environmental concerns, etc., etc. The
inflation (deflation) rates for lumber and building materials were
{3.2%), (0.4%), and 12.0% for 1995, 1994, and 1993,



Store Performance Perspective

To further enhance understanding and analysis of the relative pace, progress, and performance of our new family of stores, com-
pared to two older and smaller store groups, we are providing the information in the following tables.

Table 1 Store Group Unit Totals, Four Quarter Average

1995

1994

1993

% of %

Total Change Units

% of %
Total Change Units

% of
Total Units

Medium (2)
Large  (3)

Small (1)

17% (1% 59
16 (19) 59
67 27 % 238

20% (14)% 66
23 (22) 73
57 40 % 187

25% 77
31 94
44 134

Total

100% 356

100% 326

100% 305

Table 1 Comments; The small stores average less than 6 800 square feet of sales Moor, and represent 1 7% of the total units. The 24 contractor vards are included in our small
store tofals. The medium stores stem from our 1984- 1988 expansion, and average abou 22,000 square feey, The large stores avernge abour 86,500 square feet, with our 1996
prototypes being 101,000 1o 115,000, plus large garden centers

Table 2 Sales Contribution by Store Group, Fiscal Year
1995 1994 1993
% of % % of % % of
Total Change Tonal Change Total
Small (1) 10% (18)% 13% 1% 18%
Medium (2) 11 24 18 (16) 28
Large (3) 79 32 % 69 2% 54
Total 100% 1009% 100%

Table 2 Comments: The results shown in Table 2 need to be nead in conjunction with the changing store numbers in Table 1 because these are aggregite totals, not comp-
rable store results. The sales decreases of both the small and medium groups are partially auributable to their reduction in number. The small stores and contractor
yards posted an 8% average sales decline as contractor yards became a larger percentage of this group, Medium size stores, on average, had a 5% sales decrease. The
average large store’s sales increase of 3.5%, combined with their numerical increase, provided 79% of toal sales, up lrom 34% just lwo years ago

Table 3 Operating Profits* by Store Group, Fiscal Year
1995 1994 1993
% of % % of % % of
Total Change Total Change Total
Small (1) 7% (32)% 11% 7% 15%
Medium (2) 13 (31) 18 (9) 30
Large (3) 80 16 % 71 91% 39
Total 100% 100% 100%

*Prodits belore corporate expense and intercompany charges, interest, restructunng, LIFO and income taxes

Table 3 Comments: The above table presents group totals. 52 of the 59 small stores and yards are “comparable,” and their average sales declined 11% as contractor
yards now represent a larger percentage of this total group and these units are more affected by weaker housing and lower commodity prices

The 59 mid-sizers are stores of the mid-80s. Their average comparable store sales declined 2.5%, The lirge stores are designed lor our customers of the 90s and
they continue to outperform ooar smaller store groups. Their larger sales Noors and wider merchandise assortments helped them post better performance per average
store than the small and nedium store groups. Indeed, the 171 “comp” stores posted increases of 2% in sales. Most importanily, the 67% of our stores that are the
large ones posted T9% of our sales and 80% of operating profits

1995 1994 1993

Total 5q.Ft Toual 5q.Ft Total 54, Fr

(000,000) (000,00} (000,000)
(1) Pre 1984 Stores; Contractor Yards Avg. 6,762 5q.F + 5 0
(2) '84-"88 Stores: Avg. 22112 5q.F1 12 L5 2.0
(3} Post ‘BB Expansion Stores: Avg BO6 484 5q.Fi 214 16.6 11.6



Consolidated Statements

of Current and Retained Earnings

Lowe's Companies, Inc, and Subsidiary Companies

Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Data Fiscal S Fiscal % Fiscal %o
Fiscal Years End on January 31 of Following Yer 1995 Sales 1994 Sales 1993 Sales
Current Earnings
Net Sales £7.075.442 100% 56,110,521 100.0% §4.538,001 100.0%
Cost of Sales 5312195 73.1 4,597 977 75.2 3456717 76.2
Gross Margin 1,763,247 24.9 1,512,544 24.8 1,081,284 238
Expenses
Selling, General and Administrative 1,127,333 15.9 941,079 154 717,028 15.8
store Opening Costs 49,616 T 40,727 7 29.251 6
Depreciation 150,011 2.1 109,647 1.8 80,530 1.8
Employee Retirement Plans (Note 100 46.130 7 49.687 B8 37,873 8
Interest (Motes 7 and 16) 18,040 :; 27873 5 18,278 4
Total Expenses 1,411,140 19.9 1,169.013 19.2 882,960 19.4
Pre-Tax Earnings 152,107 5.0 343,531 3.6 198,324 4.4
Income Tax Provision (Mo 9) 126,080 1.8 119,971 1.9 66,338 1.5
Net Earnings § 226,027 3.2% § 223560 31.7% S 131,786 2.9%
Shares Ouistanding — Weighted Average 160,453 154926 147,308
Earnings Per Common & Common
Equivalent Share s 1.41 1 1.44 5 B9
Earnings Per Common Share -
Assuming Full Dilution 5 1.36 5 1.39 5 89
Per Per Per
Retained Earnings (Notes 6 and 11) Amount Share Amount Share Amount Share
Balance at Beginning of Year $ 792,891 S 596,764 5 489,033
Met Earnings 126,027 $1.41 223,560 §1.44 131,786 § B9
Cash Dividends (Notes 6 and 11 (30,471) 5(.19) (27,433) S(18) (23,571) 5(.16)
Stock Split - — (484)
Balance at End of Year $ U8B 447 § 792,801 S 596,764

Ser accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial galements
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Lowe's Companies, Inc. and Subsidiry Companies

Dollirs in Thousands Fiscal % Fiscal % Fiscal %
Fiscal Years End on January 31 of Following Year 1995 Total 1994 Total 1993 Total
Assels
Current Assels:
Cash and Cash Equivalems S 63868 1.8% s 150,319 4.8% 73253 33%
Short-Term Investments 107 429 3.0 118,155 3.8 35.215 1.6
Accounts Receivable = Met (Note 2) 113,483 3.2 109214 3.5 48,500 S
Merchandise Inventory (Nowe 3) 1,267,077 35.6 1,132,282 36.5 853,707 388
Deferred Income Taxes (Nowe 9) 19,168 3 18,129 6 12,300 .6
Other Current Assets 32.659 9 20,069 ] 60,932 2.7
Total Current Assels 1.603,684 5.0 1,557,168 50.1 1,083,907 49.2
Property, Less Accumulated
Depreciation (Noses 4 and &) 1.858.274 523 1,397,713 +3.0 1,020,234 46.3
Long-Term Investments (Note 8) 41,059 1.2 83,439 2.7 40,408 1.8
Other Assets 33369 1.5 67,652 2.2 37,099 2.7
Total Assets 53,556,380 100.0% £3,105,992 100.0% $2,201.648  100.0%
Liabilities and Sharcholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities:
Short-Term Notes Payable (Nowe 5) £ 16617 5% 5 1,903 1% 2,281 A%
Current Matrities of Long-Term Debt (Mo o) 1127 4 26,913 o 49,547 23
Accounts Payable 635,399 184 675,436 217 467,278 21.2
Employee Retirement Plans (Note 10) 44,924 1:3 43,950 -4 34,422 1.6
Accrued Salaries and Wages 67,370 1.9 63,356 2.0 45,883 2.1
Other Current Liabilities 151,494 4.2 134,334 4.4 81,765 3.6
Total Current Liabilities 949,931 26.7 945,892 30.5 681,176 30.9
Long-Term Debt, Excluding Currem
Maturities (Note &) BOO, 183 244 681,184 219 392,333 26.9
Deferred Income Taxes (Mote 9 83,557 2.3 29211 1.6 26,165 1.2
Accrued Store Restructuring Costs (Moe 15 — — 9815 " 28.305 1.3
Total Liabilities 1,899,671 53.4 1,686,102 54.3 1,327,979 60.3
Commitments, Contingencies and
Litigation (Nowes 13 and 14}
Sharcholders’ Equity (Notes 6, 11 and 12)
Common Stock = $.50 Par Value,
Fiscal lssued and Cutstanding
1995 160,918,046
1964 159,527,389
1993 147,886,770 80,439 23 79,764 2.0 73,943 34
Capital in Excess of Par 596,828 16.7 554,838 17.9 202,962 92
Retained Earnings 988, +47 27.8 792 891 25.5 596,764 271
Unearned Compensation — Restricted Stock Awards (8,076) (.2) (3949 (.2) - -
Unrealized Loss on Available For Sale Securities (943) — (1,654 .13 — —_
Total Sharecholders' Equity 1,656,715 46.6 1,419,890 45.7 873,669 39.7
Total Liabilities and
Shareholders’ Equity £$3,550,386 100.0% $3,105992 100.0% $2.201.648  100.0%

See accompanying notes to consolidated finencinl starements
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Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows

Lowe's Companies, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

Dallars in Thousands Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
Fiscal Years End on January 31 of Following Year 1995 1994 1993
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Met Earnings $226.027 223,560 %131,786
Adjusiments to Reconcile Net Earmings to MNet Cash
Provided By Operating Activities:
Depreciation 150,011 109,647 80,530
Amonization of Original lssue Discount 3.601 3,205 1,615
Increase in Deferred Income Taxes 32,924 18,108 5,860
(Gain] Loss on Disposition/Writedown of Fixed and Other Assets (L171) 5924 8,969
Decrease (Increase) in Operating Assets:
Accounts Receivable - Net 14.260) (60714 4,788
Merchandise Inventory (134,795) (178,575) (259,512)
Other Operating Assets (3.298) 31,170 (26,186)
Incrense (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities
Accounts Payable (20,037) 208,158 136,694
Employee Retirement Plans 38,196 41,257 32,937
Accrued Store Restructuring (8.304) (10,000} (8.905)
Other Operating Liabilities 24424 67,236 17,123
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 303,309 358,976 125,699
Cash Flows [rom Investing Activities:
Decrease (Increase) in Investment Assets
Short-Term Investments 18,538 (83.374) (29,315)
Purchases of Long-Term Investments (30.,906) (T4.614) (41,714}
Proceeds from Sale/Maturity of Long-Term [nvestments 66,588 20,452 24576
Other Long-Term Assets (2.656) (2,438) 1,645
Fixed Assets Acguired (520,362) (414.103) (336.888)
Proceeds from the Sale of Fixed and Other Long-Term Assets 20,856 15,179 27,641
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (447 ,942) (529,898) (354.055)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Sources:
Long-Term Debt Borrowings 08,959 500 281,915
Met Increase in Shon-Term Borrowings 14,714 — —_
Proceeds from Issuance of Common Stock — 315,697 -
Stock Options Exercised =4 1,100 1,504
Total Financing Sources 113,717 317,297 283,419
Uses:
Repayment of Long-Term Debt (25,064 (41,498) (6.276)
Net Decrease in Shori-Term Borrowings - (378) (912}
Cash Dividend Payments (30.471) (27.433) (23.571)
Total Financing Uses (55,535) (69,309) (30,759)
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 58,182 247,988 252,660
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (B6,451) 77,066 24,304
Cash and Cash Equivalenis, Beginning of Year 150,319 73,253 48,949
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 63,808 $150,319 5 73253

See accompanying notes to consobidated [inancial stmements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Lowe's Companies, Inc. and Submidiary Companies
Fiscal Years Ended January 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994

Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The Company is one of America’s largest retailers serving the do-it-yoursell home improvement, home decor, and home
construction markets. The Company serves customers in 365 stores in states predominantly located in the eastern hall of the
United States. Below are those accounting policies considered 10 be significant.

Subsidiaries and Principles of Consolidation — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company
and its subsidiaries, all of which are wholly owned. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with generally accepted account-
ing principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts ol assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments
that are readily conventible to cash within three months of purchase,

Investments — The Company has a cash management program which provides [or the investment of excess cash balances in
financial instruments which have maturities of up to three years. Investments with a maturity of between three months and one
year are classified as shon-term investments. Investments with maturities greater than one year are classified as long-term. Invest-
ments consist primarily of tax exempt notes and bonds, auction rate tax exempt securities, municipal preferred tax exempt
stock and reverse repurchase agreements.

The Company has classified all investment securities as available-for-sale and they are carried at fair value. Unrealized
gains and losses on such securities are excluded from earnings and reported as a separate component of shareholders’ equity,
net of the related income taxes, until realized.

Derivatives — Interest rate swap agreements, which are principally used by the Company in the management of interest
rate exposire, are accounted for on an accrual basis. Income and expense are recorded in the same category as that arising
[rom the related liability. Amounts to be paid or received under interest rate swap agreements are recognized as interest income
ot expense in the periods in which they accrue.

Premiums paid for purchased interest rate cap agreements are being amortized 1o interest expense over the terms of the
caps. Unamortized premiums are included in other assets in the consolidated balance sheet. Amounts to be received under
the cap agreements are accounted for on an accrual basis, and are recognized as a reduction of interest expense.

Accounts Receivable — The majority of the accounts receivable arise [rom sales 1o professional building contractors
predominantly located in the eastern half of the United States. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on historical
experience and a review of existing receivables.

Sales generated through the Company’s private label credit card are not reflected in receivables. These credit card receivables
are sold, without recourse, to an outside finance company.

Merchandise Inventory — Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market. In an effort o more closely maich cost of
sales and related sales, cost is determined using the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method. Included in inventory cost are adminis-
trative, warchousing and other costs directly associated with buying. distributing and maintaining inventory in a condition
for resale

Property and Depreciation — Property is recorded at cost. Costs associated with major additions are capitalized and
depreciated. Upon disposal, the cost of properties and related accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts with
gains and losses rellected in earnings.

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets. Assets are generally depreciated on the
straight-line method. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or term of the
related lease.

Leases — Assels under capital leases are amontized in accordance with the Company's normal depreciation policy for
owned assets or over the lease term if shorter. The charge to earnings resulting from amortization ol these assets is included
in depreciation expense in the consolidated financial statements.

Income Taxes — Income taxes are provided for temporary differences between the tax and financial accounting bases of
assets and liabilities using the liability method. The tax effects of such differences are reflected in the balance sheet at the tax
rates expected to be in elfect when the differences reverse.

Store Pre-opening Costs — Costs of opening new retail stores are charged 1o operations as incurred.

Store Closing Costs — Upon closing or relocating a store, costs considered to be unrecoverable, such as the book value of
leasehold improvements and the estimated loss on sale of land and building, are charged to expense. The Company also records
a provision for the present value of future lease obligations, net of sub-lease income. The estimated net realizable value of closed
store real estate owned is included in other assets. See Note 15 regarding store restructuring accrual in Fiscal 1991,

Earnings Per Share — Earnings per share are calculated on the weighted average shares of common stock and dilutive
common stock equivalents outstanding each year. The Company’s 3% Convertible Subordinated Notes due July 22, 2003,
are potentially dilutive securities for purposes ol calculating fully diluted earnings per share.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncement — In March 1995, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 121, “*Accounting for
the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of" (SFAS 121) was issued. SFAS 121 requires
that long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles held and used by an entity be reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If the sum of the expected
future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognized. Otherwise, an impairment
loss is not recognized. Also, SFAS 121 requires that certain long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles 1o be disposed
of be reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs o sell. Management believes that the adoption of SFAS
121 in fiscal 1996 will not have a material effect on the Company's financial statements.

Note 2, Accounts Receivable:

Until termination in April 1995, the Company had an agreement to sell, with limited recourse, an undivided [ractional
interest in a designated pool of receivables. Under the agreement, as collections reduce previously sold interests in receivables,
an interest in new receivables could be sold. At January 31, 1995 and 1994, the interest in receivables sold totaled $38.5 and
£121.9 million, respectively. Due 1o hold-back provisions of the agreement, the Company was due $8.5 and $31.9 million at
January 31, 1995 and 1994, respectively, for interests sold. These receivables are included in Accounts Receivable — Net in
the balance sheet for the respective years. The costs associated with selling the interest in receivables were $.5, 1.7 and $3.3
million for Fiscal 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively. The Company maintained an allowance for doubtful accounts because
it retained substantially the same risk of credit loss as if the receivables had not been sold.

The allowance [or doubtful accounts was $1.9, $2.3 and $2.7 million at January 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively.

Note 3, Merchandise Inventory:
If the FIFO method had been used. inventories would have been $73.2, $65.0 and $64.5 million higher at January 31,
1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively.

Note 4, Property and Accumulated Depreciation:

Net property includes $248.9, $159.0 and $59.0 million in assets from capital leases for Fiscal 1995, 1994 and 1993,
respectively.

Property is summarized below by major class:

January 31

1996 1995 1004
(Dallars in Thouwsarids)
Cost:
Land $ 355,701 5 290312 $ 234551
Buildings 939,120 6RO, TAT 478373
Store and Office Equipment 913225 bh6 885 500.811
Leasehold Improvements 10 850 98217 113,287
Total Cost 2,317,896 1,742,151 1,317,022
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization (459,622) (344, 438) (206, TES)
Net Property (Note 131 51,858,274 51,397,713 51,020,234

The estimated depreciable lives, in years, of the Company's property are: buildings, 20 1o 40; store and office equipment,
3 to 10; leasehold improvements, generally the life of the related lease.

Note 5, Short-Term Borrowings and Lines of Credit:

Several banks have extended lines of credit aggregating $176 million lor the purpose of issuing documentary letters of
credit and standby letters of credit. These lines do not have termination dates but are reviewed periodically. Commitment
fees from .12% to .50% per annum are paid on the amounts of standby letters of credit used. At January 31, 1996, outstand-
ing letters of credit aggregated $89.9 million.

Elfective April 10, 1995, the Company entered into a $300 million revolving credit facility with a syndicate of 13 banks.
The facility expires on April 10, 2000, and is used to support the Company’s commercial paper program and for short-term
borrowings. A [acility fee of .09% per annum is paid on the unused amount of the facility. At January 31, 1996, there were
no borrowings outstanding under this revolving credit facility.

A $100 million revolving credit and security agreement, expiring in September 1996, is available from a linancial institution.
A portion of the Company’s accounts receivable is pledged as collateral. At January 31, 1996, there was $14.8 million
outstanding under this credit agreement.

In addition $75 million is available, on an unsecured basis, for the purpose of short-term borrowings on a bid basis
from various banks. These lines are uncommitted and are reviewed periodically by both the banks and the Company.
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Note 6, Long-Term Debt:

Fiscal Year

Dbt of Final January 31
Category Interest Rates Maturity 1996 1995 1994
(Dyllars in Thousancds)
Secured Debi':
Insurance Company Notes 6.75% 1998 5 286 $ +14 5 334
Bank Notes 17
Industrial Revenue Bonds A3l
Other Notes 9.50% 2005 470 561 661
Unsecured Debi:
Industrial Revenue Bonds 3.30% to 5.27%* 2020 6,726 7.997 10,230
Industrial Revenue Bonds® 3.85%* 2005 8,000 B.B00 2600
Medinm Term Notes 6.50% 10 8,20 2022 249979 249972 249 966
Convertible Subordinated Notes' 3.00'% 2003 255,554 154 505 251,524
Senior Motes' 6.38% 20015 98,968
Bank Motes® +.73%"* 1996 6,000 23,863 57,955
Capital Leases (Mowe 13) 6.12% to 11.56% 2033 154,327 161,985 60,558
Total Long-Term Debi 880,310 TO8,097 641,880
Less Corrent Maturities 14127 26913 49 547
Long-Term Debt, Excluding

Current Maturities S8o66, 183 S641,184 5592333

* Imurrest vate vares &5 8 pereentage of prme mie or other inteees) sdes
Imievest rabes shown s o of Jamuary V], 1996
Prisie rure was B5% ai lensary Y1, 1996

Debt marurities, exclusive of capital leases (see Note 13), for the next five fiscal years are as follows (in millions): 1996,
$8.2; 1997, $13.3; 1998, $1.7; 1999, §46.5; 2000, $74.4.

bt e
Real propenties plediged an collazeral for secured Sebe hael net ook vakues (m miflions? &t famsary 11, 1996, @ follows  insurance COmpANY nates = %1 6 andl other noles = 3.8
Wiih certain pestictions, (he I|;1.|.||.11|_{ tmte drmand mdustnul revens bonds can be comvendd to a lixed imerest e based on o e imerest index 2l the C gy oion
O Juby 22, 1993, the Commpammy sold $267_ 5 million aggrepate principal of its 195 Convenible Subonfinsted Moes dae July 22, 307 The notes ate comveritble imo Lowe's Common Stock a8 the
conversion mte of 3432 shanes of commen seack per esch 31000 principal amount. The nedes werne tsaied at an onginal price of $830.27 per $1 000 principal smoent, which epresemied an onipnal
sanie discount of 119735 payalde s matiny: Anmead intorest on the notes @ Y% and accretion of the original isaie discount represents an amimnial weld (o matumiy of 455 The notes ane callable
l.wl'!_|r|'l 10 ocfain adjustmeneal @ amy time o o dler fuly 22, 1956
Dharing Fiscal 1995 and 1994, $2.532 000 and $224.000 prancepal of the Company's ¥ Convestible Subordimaled Notes were converted tnto $6 904 and 8970 shayes of the Compamyh commen stock
reprctivehy

* n Decetsher 15, 1995, the Conspamy masiod §100 millsm of 6 3TY% Semor Notes due December 15, 2005, The noles wee saued aban onginal pnoe of $§989. 55 per $1,000 prmsapal amount, which
reprentnted an original sk discound of %95 payable i mauriy nd an onderwrstees” discoint of B5% Annual jmeeest on ihe pobes st 6 7735 and acovevion of the onginal issie discount epresenss
aty wnivisal yield 1o mswnay of 5.429% The notes may not be pedeemed prios 10 mefuriy

' These nates requine thal orreain Ananclal conditkons be maintained, watrict mbee bormowings, snd lmi the peyment of dividends to $40 million donmg any ene year

Note 7, Derivative Financial Instruments:

The Company has only limited involvement with derivative financial instruments, and does not use them for trading
purposes.

The Company enters into derivatives, exclusively interest rate swaps and caps, to lower lunding costs or alter interest rate
exposures [or long-term liabilities. Interest rate swaps allow the Company 1o raise long-term borrowings at fixed rates and
swap them into variable rates [or shorter durations. This enables the Company to separate interest rate management from debt
funding decisions. At January 31, 1996, the Company had 14 interest rate swap agreements outstanding with financial
institutions, having notional amounts of $10 million each and a total notional amount of $140 million. Under the agreements,
the Company will receive interest payments at an average fixed rate of 5.60% and will pay interest on the same notional
amounts at a floating rate based on an interest rate index, which was 5.27% as of January 31, 1996, These interest rate swap
agreements are scheduled to terminate as follows (in millions): 1996, $90; 1997, $50.

Interest rate cap agreements are used to reduce the potential impact of increases in interest rates on the interest rate swap
agreements, discussed above. At January 31, 1996, the Company was a party to 14 interest rate cap agreements, each with terms
tied to the terms of the interest rate swap agreements. The agreements entitle the Company o receive from counterparties on
a semi-annual basis the amounts, if any, by which the Company’s interest payments on its $140 million notional amount of
interest rate swap agreements exceed approximately 75 basis points over the fixed rate on each swap.

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the event ol nonperformance by the counterparties to its interest rate swap
agreements and interest rate cap agreements. The Company anticipates that counterparties will be able to fully satisfy their
obligations under the agreements. The counterparties consist of a number of financial institutions whose credit ratings were
AA or better at the time the agreements were instituted. No collateral is held in relation to the agreements. Credit exposure
exists in relation to all the Company’s financial instruments, and is not unique to derivatives.
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Note 8, Disclosures about Fair Values of Financial Instruments:

The following estimated fair value amounts have been determined, using available market information and appropriate
valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgement is necessarily required in interpreting market data to develop the
estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the
Company could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodolo-
gies may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

January 31, 1996 January 31, 1995 January 31, 1994
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(Dollars in Thousands) Amoumnt Value Amount Value Amount Value
Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalenis 5 63,868 § 63 868 S150.319 $150,319 $- 73253 5 73233
Short-Term Investmenis 107,429 107,420 118,155 118,153 35,215 35.240
Met Receivables 113,483 113,483 109,214 109214 48 500 48,500
Long-Term Investments 41.059 41.059 B3 459 83450 40,408 40,801
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 655,309 655,399 675,436 675436 467,278 467278
Short-Term Debt 16,617 16617 1,903 1,903 2,281 2,281
Long-Term Debi:
Convertible Subordinated Motes 255,554 348,435 254,505 402,186 251,524 362,250
Other $624.756 670,313 5453592 436,914 £390 356 410,216
Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments -
Unrealized Gains (Losses):
Interest Rate Swap Agreements — 758 — (6,482) — $ 4121
Interest Rate Cap Agreements — ] 9 = £ 30915 — —_
Cash aril cash equivalenas, receivables, sccounss payable, und shis-urrm debt — The cammying amouns of these ems sic & reasorable estimate of therr fair valoe

Shan-term ivessments and king-term investments — At Jetisiary 31, 1996 and 1993, these imesimests are classtlied a5 svatlable lor salv aml cartied a b fair vabie. lmaary 11, 1904 Lir vabie bs

estizaied lrom quoted market prices for these or simibss imvesinsents
Lomg-term debd = Injeress rates that are carremiy available w ke Company st ssuancr of debit with samilar terms ssil remaming matinivies ate tsed 10 extimaie (e vilue for debi jsies (hal she mol

e on an exchange
Inserest rate swap agreements and interess oibe cap agreeemiens — The fsir vabue of imerest oiie swaps and caps s the amounts 38 which they could be seiibed, basesd on extimaies shiasned brom deslers

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses and fair values of investment securities, all of which are classified
as available-for-sale securities, at January 31, 1996 and 1995 are as follows:

(Dallars in Thousands) Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair
Type Cost Gains Losses Value
Municipal Obligations % 29,298 $ 6 £ (@ 5 29,303
Auction Rate and Adjustable
Rate Preferred Stock 79,879 8 (1,761) 78,126
Classified as Short-term 109,177 14 {1.762) 107,429
Municipal Obligations 39,762 332 (35) 40,059
Auction Rate Preferred Stock 1,000 — — 1.000
Classified as Long-term 40,762 332 (33) 41,059
Total at January 31, 1996 5149,939 5 346 5(1,797) 5148488
Municipal Obligations $ 33,234 s 1 $ (228) $§ 33,007
Auction Rate and Adjustable
Rate Preferred Stock B6,476 13 (1,341) 85,148
Classified as Short-term 119,710 14 (1,569) 118,155
Municipal Obligations 50,944 o989 (1,902} 50.031
Auction Rate Prelerred Stock 33,500 — (72) 33,428
Classified as Long-term 84,444 989 (1,974 83,459
Total at January 31, 1995 $204,154 51,003 5(3,543) 5201614

The proceeds lroin sales of svalable-lof-sale securities weee $60 4 and $70.0 nuilbon for the years eoded Jameary 31, 10098 znd 1993, respectively

Gererss realized galns and (hmses) on the sale of available-lor-sale securisies were 5320 thinmansd and $426) thiusand for el 1999 and 5112 thousand ansd S0838) themsand for fiscal 1904

Muurities of municipal obligaioms classified as long-ierm are $12.4 milllon op o | year, $23 3 million afier 1 year through 3 yesrs, and 810 mullion alier % years throagh 10 vears end $3. million alser
10 years. The $1 0 million msoney matbio preleceed stock has o stated mavwmy
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Note 9, Income Taxes:

Fiscal Years End on January 31 Fiscal 1995 Fiscal 1004 Fiscal 1993
ol Following Year Amount % Amount % Amouni %
{Dollars in Thousands) Statutory Rate Reconciliation
Pre-Tax Earnings 5352107 10005 5343531 100.0% 5198.,324 100.0%
Federal Income Tax m Stamory Rate 123237 350 120,236 5.0 69.413 315.0
Seate Income Taxes = Met of Federal Tax Benelin 8,003 L3 4,248 1.2 2.340 1.2
tMher {5.250) (1.3) (#.513) (1.3) (5,215} {2.6)
Total Income Tax Provision 5126,080 35.8% 5119971 34.9% 5 66,538 33.6%
Components of Income Tax Provision
Current
Federal L HO 4T 68 5% f U432 22 0% £ 5H 085 87 3%
Stae 6,809 54 J431 29 2,590 19
Total Current 93,156 730 101,863 B4.9 60,678 91.2
Deferred
Federal 27.282 21.6 15,004 12.5 4,850 7.3
Slate 5,642 45 3. 104 1.6 1,010 1.5
Total Deferred 32,924 261 18,108 15.1 5860 B8
Total Income Tax Provision 5126.080 100.0% 5119971 100.0% 5 66,538 100. 0%

The 1ax effect of cumulative temporary differences and carryforwards that gave rise to the deferred tax assets and
liabilities and the related valuation allowance at January 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994 are as follows (in thousands):

January 31, 1996 Junuary 31, 1995 January 31, 1994
Asscis _ Liahilities Total Assets  Liabilities Toual Asscis  Liabilities Total
Accrued Store Restructuring Costs % 6,245 — § 6,245 S17.077 — S17.077 $2238] — 52238]
Insurance 65,725 — 6,725 4.568 —_ 4,568 2432 - 2432
Depreciation — S(92 2800 (92.280] —  S{67A401) (67 4610 — S(49,0601) (49,0800
Property Taxes 4,859 - 4,859 6,230 — 6,230 4.944 (1,038) 5,006
Other, Net 17,156 (5,529) 11,627 14,265 (5.612) 8653 15,023 (5.601) 10,232
Less Vialuation Allowance {1, 565) — {1.563) L149) — {1449} {3.726) - {3.726)
Total SIIA20 S(O7TRO00) S(A4.380) 341,001 S(73.073) S(31.081)  S41.954 50558191 5(13.865)

The valuation allowance increased $1,416,000, decreased $3,577,000 and increased $420,000 during the years ended
January 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively

Note 10, Employee Retirement Plans:

The Company's contribution to its Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) is determined annually by the Board of
Directors. The ESOP covers all employees after completion of one year of employment and 1000 hours of service during that
year. Contributions are allocated 1o participants based on their eligible compensation relative to total eligible compensation
The Board authorized contributions totaling 14% of eligible compensation for the Fiscal Year 1995 and 13% of eligible compensa-
tion for each of the Fiscal Years 1994 and 1993, Contributions may be made in cash or shares of the Company's common stock
and are generally made in the following liscal year.

As of January 31, 1996, the Employee Stock Ownership Trust held approximately 15.3% of the oustanding common
stock of the Company and was uts largest shareholder

Shares allocated to ESOP participants’ accounts are voted by the trustee according to the participants’ voting instructions.
Unallocated shares and shares for which no voting instructions are received are voted by the trustee as directed by a manage-
ment committee. At January 31, 1996, there were no unallocated shares.

The Board of Directors determines contributions to the Company’s Employee Savings and Investment Plan (ESIP) each
year based upon a matching formula applied to employee contributions. All employees are eligible to participate in the ESIP
on the first day of the month following completion of one year of employment. Company contributions to this plan for Fiscal
1995, 1994 and 1993 were $6.0, $4.9 and $3.9 million, respectively. The Company’s common stock is an investment option
for participants in the ESIP. As of January 31, 1996, the ESIP held approximately 9% of the owstanding common stock ol
the Company. Shares held in the ESIP are voted by the trustee as directed by an administrative committee of the ESIP.

The Company does not have any material liability for postemployment or postretirement benelits.
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Note 11, Shareholders’ Equity:

Authorized shares of common stock were 700 million at January 31, 1996,

Transactions alfecting the shareholders’ equity section of the consolidated balance sheets are summarized as follows:

{In Thousands) Shares (In Thousands) Shareholders’ Equity
Linrealized
Uncarned Loss on
Capital in Compensation  Available
Commaon Excess of Retained Restricied For 5ale Total
Crutstanding Stock Par Value Earnings  Stock Awards  Securities  Equity

Balance January 31, 1993 145,946 572973 5171.214 5489.033 nil nil § 733,220
Net Earmings 131,786 131,786
Tax Effect of Incentive

Stock Options Exercised (Mote 12) 172 172
Cash Dividends (23,571 {23.571)
Stock Options Exercised (Note 12) 245 122 1442 (60} 1,504
Stock lssued to ESOP (Mote 100 1,696 H48 W0, 134 {424) 30,558
Balance January 31, 1994 147 68T 73,943 202,962 396,76+ nil nil 873,669
Met Earnings 223,560 223,560
Tax Effect of Non-qualified

Stock Options Exercised (Mowe 12) 1344 2344
Cash Dividends (27433 (27 433)
Stock Sale 10,350 5,175 10,522 315,697
Stock Options Exercised (Note 12) 172 a6 1,219 1,305
Stock Received lor Exercise of Stock Opions () (3 (202} {205)
S1ock Issued o ESOP (Note 100 022 +a1 31268 31,729
Conversion of 3% MNotes B +4 193 197
Shares Issued to Directors 4 2 124 126
Ungarnied Compensation-Restricted

Stock Awards £90 96 6,408 $(5.949) 535
Unrealized Loss on Available for Sale

Secunties, Net of Income Taxes of $886 $(1,654) (1,654)
Balance January 31, 1995 159527 79.764 554,838 792,891 (5,940] (1,654) 1,419,890
Met Earnings 226,027 226,027
Tax Effect of Non-gualified

Stock Options Exercised (Mote 12) 25 25
Cash Dividends (30.471) (30471)
Stock Options Exercised (Nowe 12) L 2 42 44
Stock Issued to ESOP (Note 107 1.182 501 36,631 37.222
Conversion of 3% Notes 97 40 2,183 2,232
Shares Issued o Directors + 2 93 a5
Unearned Compensation-Ressricted

Stock Awards 104 3l 3016 (2,127) 040
Unrealized Loss on Available for Sale

Securities, Net of Income Tax

Benelit of 5378 T1l Tl
Balance January 31, 1996 160,918 580,459 5596828 SOBB 447 S(8,076) 5 (D43) 51,656,715

The Company has 5 million authorized shares of preferred stock (35 par), none of which have been issued. The preferred
stock may be issued by the Board of Directors (without action by shareholders) in one or more series, having such voting rights,
dividend and liquidation preferences and such conversion and other rights as may be designated by the Board ol Directors at
the time of issuance of the preferred shares.

Unearned Compensation — Restricted Stock Awards of $8,076,000 included in Shareholders' Equity on the balance sheet
is the result of restricted stock grants totaling 294,000 shares made to certain executives and directors. The amount will be
amortized as earned over periods not exceeding seven years.

The Company has a shareholder rights plan which provides [or a dividend distribution of one preferred share purchase
right on each outstanding share of common stock. Each purchase right will entitle shareholders to buy one unit of a newly
authorized series of preferred stock. A shareholder’s interest is not diluted by the effects of a stock dividend or stock split. Each
unit is intended 1o be the equivalent of one share ol common stock. The purchase rights will be exercisable only il & person or
group acquires or announces a tender olfer for 20% or more of Lowe's common stock. The purchase rights do not apply to the
person or group acquiring the stock. The purchase rights will expire on September 19, 1998,
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Note 12, Stock Incentive Plans:

The Company has a stock option plan under which incentive and non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights,
restricted stock awards and incentive awards may be granted 1o key employees. No awards may be granted after January 31,
2004. At January 31, 1996, there were 2,112,040 shares available for grants under the plan. Option information is summarized
as [ollows:

Option Price

Kev Employee Stock Option Plan Shares Per Share
{In Thousanda)
Outstanding January 31, 1993 £ | 54.063, 56.375, 510,188
Exercizsed (217} 4063, 36,375
Outstanding January 31, 1994 154 $6.375, 510.188
Granted 20 $38.75
Canceled or Expired (2) $6.375
Exercised (152) £6.375, $10.188
Ouistanding January 31, 1995 and 1996 20 §38.75

Prior to Fiscal 1989, all options granted were incentive options. Between Fiscal 1989 and Fiscal 1994, options granted have
been adjustable non-qualified options exercisable at a maximum price of $10,188 per share. Upon exercise of a non-qualified
option, the optionee makes a payment to the Company equal to the shares' [air market value on the date the option was granted.
In accordance with a formula set forth in each option agreement, the Company uses part of the option price to make a federal
income tax deposit on behalfl of the optionee. The options granted in Fiscal 1994 were incentive options.

Incentive stock option shares which are sold by the optionee within two years of grant or one year of exercise result in a
tax deduction for the Company equivalent to the taxable gain recognized by the optionee. For [inancial reporting purposes,
the tax effect of this deduction is accounted for as a credit to capital in excess of par value rather than as a reduction of
income tax expense. Such optionee sales resulted in a tax benefit to the Company of approximately $25 thousand, $2.34
million and $172 thousand during Fiscal Years 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.

Stock appreciation rights are denominated in units, which are comparable to a share of Common Stock for purposes of
determining the amount payable under an award. An award entitles the participant to receive the excess of the final value of
the unit over the fair market value of a share of common stock on the first day of the performance period. The final value is
the average closing price of a share of Common Stock during the last month of the performance period. Limits are established
with respect to the amount payable on each unit. A total of 888,450 stock appreciation rights, with performance periods of
one to three years, with a maximum payout of $7,173,000, were outstanding at January 31, 1996. The costs of these rights
are being expensed over the performance periods.

A total of 325,500 restricted stock awards have been granted to certain executives and directors. These shares are non-
transferable and subject to forfeiture for periods prescribed by the Company. These shares may become transferable and
vested earlier based on achievement of certain performance measures. A total of 29,500 shares were forfeited during Fiscal
1995 and no shares became vested or transferable during Fiscal 1995,

During Fiscal 1989, shareholders approved a Non-Employee Directors' Stock Option Plan. This plan provided that adjust-
able non-qualified options representing 4,000 shares of Lowe's common stock would be granted to each outside Director
following the Annual Meeting in 1989, 1990, 1991, 1992 and 1993. Two hundred thousand shares of common stock were
reserved to fulfill the requirements of this plan. Options representing 28,000 shares were granted under this plan in each of
Fiscal 1989, Fiscal 1990, Fiscal 1991, Fiscal 1992 and Fiscal 1993, of which options representing 56,000 shares have been
exercised. The option price per share was $6.375 for Fiscal 1989, $10.906 for Fiscal 1990, $8.625 for Fiscal 1991, $10.969
for Fiscal 1992 and $18.875 for Fiscal 1993. The non-qualified options granted to Directors include the same 1ax deposit
feature described above with respect o the Key Employee Stock Option Plan. This plan expired at the end of Fiscal 1993

At January 31, 1996, options for 20,000 shares (expiration date in 2004) were exercisable under the Key Employee Stock
Option Plan and options for 84,000 shares (expiration dates range from 1999 through 2003) were exercisable under the
MNon-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan.

The Company has a Directors’ Stock Incentive Plan. This Plan provides that at the first Board meeting following each
annual meeting of shareholders, the Company shall issue each non-employee Director 500 shares of Common Stock. Up to
25,000 shares may be issued under this Plan. In Fiscal 1995 and 1994, 3,500 and 4,000 shares, respectively, were issued under

this Plan,
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Note 13, Leases:

The Company leases certain store facilities under agreements with original terms generally of twenty years. Agreements
generally provide for contingent rental based on sales performance in excess of specified minimums. To date, contingent rentals
have been very nominal. The leases typically contun provisions for four renewal options of five years each. Certain equipment is
also leased by the Company under agreements ranging from two to five years. These agreements typically contain renewal options
providing for a renegotiation of the lease, at the Company's option, based on the [air market value at that time.

The future minimum rental payments required under capital and operating leases having initial or remaining noncancelable
lease terms in excess of one year are summarized as lollows;

Operating Leases Capital Leases
Fiscal Year Real Estate Equipmen Real Estate Equipment Total
(Daollars in Thousands)
1996 £ 49,234 5645 5 26963 % 3l6 5 ir. 158
1997 50.261 36 26082 197 TTATH
1998 43,886 3 26 684 193 70,786
1999 43,368 11 26,658 193 0,230
2000 42,612 - 26,676 120 &0 408
Later Years 386,661 — 384,202 - 970,863
Total Minimum Lease Payments s$816.022* 5715 5518.165 51.019 51,335,021
Total Minimum Capital Lease Payments $319.184
Less Amount Representing Interest 264 857
Present Vialue of Minimum Lease Payments 254 327
Less Current Magurities 5 880
Present Value of Minimum

Lease Payments, Less Current Maturities S248 447

*Tewal mumimemnem paymetes have gl been reduced by nmimom sublease remials of 838 nullem io be receoed in the Butier under sheancelalde wsbfeases

Rental expenses under operating leases for real estate and equipment were $54.1 million, $40.2 million and $27.2
million in Fiscal 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively

Note 14, Commitments, Contingencies and Litigation:

The Company had purchase commitments at January 31, 1996, of approximately $46.5 million for land, buildings and
construction of facilities, and $37 .8 million lor equipment.

The Company is a defendant in legal proceedings considered to be in the normal course of business and none of which,
singularly or collectively, are considered material to the Company as a whole. Potential Hability in excess ol the Company's
self-insured retention under these proceedings is covered by insurance.

The Company is subject to various environmental protection laws and regulations and is operating within such laws or is
taking action aimed at assuring compliance with such laws and regulations. The Company has been identified as a potentially
responsible party in connection with three landfill sites at which environmental damage is alleged. Any associated costs to the
Company is not expected 1o have a material impact on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

On March 4, 1996, a state government agency in one of the states where the Company conducts business publicized that
under certain conditions, imported plastic mini-blinds of the type sold by the Company may create a lead poisoning hazard
for young children. The Company has sold blinds of this type for about ten years. Lowe's is in contact with the Consumer
Products Safety Commission, and is awaiting results of further testing of this product being conducted by the state agency. It
is too early in this process for the Company to determine whether or not there is any significant potential loss or liability 1o
the Company. Therefore, no accounting provision for any potential loss under adverse circumstances related to this publi-
cized matter has been made in the 1995 [inancial statements.

Note 15, Store Restructuring:

In Fiscal 1991, the Company recorded a pre-tax fourth quarter charge of $71.3 million for the expected costs and
expenses required to accelerate the Company’s conversion from a chain of small stores to a chain of large stores. The restruc-
turing charge is composed primarily of write-downs of long-lived assets to their net realizable value, principally real estate for
owned locations, certain leasehold improvements, fixtures and equipment. It also includes certain relocation costs and
expenses. The charge included stores relocated under the restructuring plan in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 1991 and those
scheduled for closing and relocation through Fiscal 1995. As anticipated, the last of these restructuring costs that were
accrued for were paid in Fiscal 1995,
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Note 16, Other Information:
Net interest expense is composed of the lollowing

Years Ended January 31, 1996 1995 19ay
{Dollars th Thousands)

Long-Term Debt $34,536 § 36,001 $12.388
Capitalized Leases 16,872 7436 1.758
Short-Term Debi 3.001 1,056 L.217
Amonization of Loan Costs 296 295 272
Shor-Term Interest Income (10,897} {12,237} (4.763)
Interest Capitalized (5,768) (4.678) {3,502)
Met Interest Expense 538,040 5 17873 S18.278
Supplemental disclosures of cash llow information;

Years Ended Jamuary 31, 1996 19495 1994
Cash Paid for Imerest (Net of Amount Capitalized) $35.231 3 43145 523,67
Cash Paid lor Income Taxes S77.858 5108064 558,761
Non-cash investing and financing activities:

Fixed Assets Acquired Under Capital Leases £06 048 $104,207 $20.343
Common Stock lssued o ESOP (Notes 10 and 11) 7212 31,729 30,558
Common Stock Issued 1o Exccutives and Directors 3. 162 6,630 —
Common Stock Received for Exercise of Stock Opions — 205 —
Conversion of Debt 1o Common Stock 2.232 197 —
Motes Recelved in Exchange for Propeny £ 1450 & 6,087 § BR6

Supplemental disclosure of operating expenses:
Advertising expenses were $87.8, $71.0 and $59.3 million for Fiscal 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.

Selected Financial Data

Lowe's Companies, Inc. and Subssdiary Companies {Doflurs in Thoosands, Except Per Share Data )

Fiscal Years End an Jamuary 31 of

Fallowing Year (unandined) 1995 1994 19493 1992 1991
Selected Income Statement Data;
Net Sales §7.075 442 £6,110.521 54,538,001 53846418 $3.056,247
Net Eamings 226,027 223,560 131,786 84,720 6,487
Earnings Per Share-Full Dilution 1.36 1.39 BY 58 04
Cash Dividends Per Share s A9 S A8 ] 16 5 A4 -] 14
Sclected Balance Sheet Data:
Total Assets £3,556.386 §3,105,992 £2.201.648 &1 608877 51,441,228
Long-term Debr, Including
Current Maturities 5 B30.310 & 708,097 S 641,880 £ 335283 § 131,350
Selected Quarterly Data (Unaudited)®
Three Months Ended January 31 October 31 July 31 April 30
Fiscal 1995
Net Sales £1,696,702 %1,765,092 51,978,058 51,634,600
Ciross Margin 418,622 428 043 493,572 422,110
Met Earnings 38.175 +3.019 85,007 58,926
Earnings Per Share - Full Dilution 5 23 5 27 5 51 $ 36
Fiscal 1994
Met Sales 51 487 489 51,579,005 $1,647.019 51,397,008
Gross Margin 391,130 381,146 403,560 336,708
Net Eamings 46,265 54,191 71,351 51,733
Earmnings Per Share = Full Dilution 5 28 $ 33 5 45 $ 34
Fiscal 1993
Met Sales 51,145,828 51,158,370 51,241,691 % 062112
Gross Margin 279,017 75,620 292,480 234,167
MNet Earnings 25,733 31.645 44,960 29,448
Earnings Per Share = Full Dilution s A7 5 a2l 5 31 5 20

* LIFO Adjustment:
Fiscal 1905 - The total LIFO effect for the year was a charge of $8.3 million, A charge of $10.8 million was made against earmings through the firsi

nine months, resulting in a fourth quarter credit of $2.5 million

Fiscal 1994 — The total LIFO effect for the year was a charge of 5.4 million. A charge of $9.5 million was made against eamnings through the first nine
months, resulting in a fourth quarter credit of 39,1 million

Eiscal 1993 = The otal LIFO effect for the year was a charge of 515.5 million. A charge of $10.3 million was made aganst earmings through the firs
nine months, resulting in a fourth quaner charge of $3.2 million
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Stock Performance

Lowe’s Quarterly Stock Price Range and Cash Dividend Payment

Fiscal 1995 Fiscal 1994 Fiscal 1993

High Low Dividend High Low Dividend High Low  Dividend

st Quarter $387/8 $27 172 5045 536172 $27 3/4 5.040 517 11/16 5135/16 $.040
2nd Quarter 7 14 26 045 37 3/4 30 1/2 045 20 15 040
3rd Quarter 37 7/8 26 1/4 050 40 7/8 30 045 2411/16  183/8 040
4th Quarter $34 7/8 $27 7/8 5050  $413/8 $33 1/8 5.045 531 523 3/16 5.040

Saurce: The Wil Sereet Jisrmal
* As restazed Tor a 2-for 1 sock split 1o shareholders of record March 16, 1994

Monthly Stock Price and Trading Volume

Fiscal 1995 Fiscal 1994

Shares Shares

High Low Traded High Low Traded

February $38 7/8 $33 12 11,795,700 £33 5/16 £27 34 14,331,000
March 34 5/8 31 1/4 16,022,200 34 9/16 31 3/8 16,412,600
April 35 34 27 12 19,984,000 36 172 297/m8 9,693 600
May 30 3/8 26 1/8 20,533,900 37 374 30 12 13,487,600
June 30 26 19,802 000 35 5/8 31 14 15,486,600
July 37 14 29 3/4 19,425,000 36 5/8 337/8 8,854,000
August 37 7/8 32778 14,939,500 36 7/8 30 15,005,800
September 34 /8 20 5/8 17,574,600 30 3/4 34 3/8 12,305,000
Oclober 30 26 1/4 20,922 800 40 7/8 36 1/4 9.601,200
November 33 2T 7/ 12,222,700 41 3/8 36 1/4 9,042,500
December 34 172 30 1/8 10,799,500 38 1/4 3318 14,727,800
January $34 7/8 $28 5/8 14,845,000 $38 1/4 533 1/4 7,686,300

Source: The Will Sereet fournal
* As restated for a 2-for- 1 stock split o shancholdess of record March 16, 1994

High -Low Stock Price

Dollars; adjusted for all splits; 1972 and prior data for year ended July 31; 1973-1995 fiscal year ended January 31 of following year
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Quarterly Review of Performance

Earnings Statement

Deollars in Thoosands, Except Per Share Data Fi_scal 1945 Fiﬁ_‘_‘al 1994
Quarter Ended 1/31/96 10/31/95 731195 4/30/95 1731/95 10/31/94 7/31/94 430094
Net Sales 51,696,702 51,765.992 $1,978,058 51,634,690 51 487 489 51,579,005 51,647,019 51397008
FIFO Gross Margin 416,076 432455 408 203 424,673 382,055 32972 406,587 341,365
LIFO {Charge) Credit 2.546 (3.512) (4,721} (2,363) 9.075 (1,826) (3.027) (4.657)
LIFO Gross Margin 418,622 428,943 493,571 422,110 391,130 381,146 403,560 336,708
Expenses
SGEA 286,364 284 828 200,677 265 464 255 885 139,190 230, TH) 206,214
Store Opening Costs 13,273 16,322 11.438 8,591 15362 10,628 7345 7,392
Depreciation 42,363 38867 35,811 32,970 30,823 28,661 26,174 23,980
Employee Retirement Plans ¥.829 11.574 13,188 13,539 12177 13,265 13,135 11110
Interest 10,636 9,145 8929 9.330 6,293 5,852 T7.345 8,383
Total Expenses 160467 360,736 360,043 329,894 320,540 297,596 203,789 257,088
Pre-Tax Earnings 58,155 68,207 133,529 92216 70,500 83,550 109,771 70.620
Income Tax Provision 19 980 14,288 48,512 33,290 14,315 29,359 38,420 17 B6T
Met Earnings 38,175 431019 85,007 38,026 46,265 54,191 71,351 51,753
Earnings Per Common &

Common Equivalent

Share 2% 2T .23 37 29 4 AT 33
Earnings Per Commaon

Share — Assuming Full

Dilution s 23 L] 27 31 8 36 % 28 % 33 3 45 5 34
Earnings Statement Changes
Chamges from Same Quarter Previous Year, (o Nearest Tenth Percent Fiscal 1995 Fiscal 1994
Cuarter Ended 1/31/96 10/31/95 7/31/95 430/95 1/31/95 10/31/94 7131794 43094
MNet Sales 14.1% 11.8% 20.1% 17.0M% 29.8% 36.3% 32.6% 40.8%
FIFO Gross Margin Bg 12.9 126 244 344 3T+ 373 43.6
LIFO (Charge) Credit (71.8) 92.3 56.0 (43.0 (273.3) (40.4) {18.6) 32.7
LIFO Gross Margin 7.0 12.5 223 25.4 40.2 383 380 43.8
Expenses:
5.6 8&A 11.9 19.1 2132 2B.T 32T 9.2 3.5 3.6
Store Opening Costs (13.6) 33.6 35.7 6.2 221 47.3 12.7 132.4
Depreciation T4 5.6 6.8 3T 4 392 41.7 34.3 28.4
Emplovee Retirement Plans (35.7) (12:7) 4 21.9 56.5 245 23.6 26.2
Interest 69.0 56.3 21.6 11.3 ib 21.1 107.2 119.2
Total Expenses 12.5 21.2 22.6 283 336 30.5 31.2 34.7
Pre-Tax Earmings (17.6) (18.4) il.6 158 81.0 39 60,1 84.1
Income Tax Provision (17.9) (17.3) 263 19.5 833 85.0 62.9 1018
MNet Earnings (17.5) (19.0) 19.1 13.9 79.8 712 58.7 5.7
Earnings Per Common &

Common Equivalent

Share (18.2) (19.6) 13.3 3.0 66,7 58.9 532 738
Earnings Per Common

Share — Assuming Full

Dilution (17.4%) (18.9%:) 13.2% 5.7% 62.6% 57.1% 47.4% 67.8%
Earnings Statement Percentages
Percent of Sales 1o Mearest Hundredth; Income Tax is % of Pre-Tax Enmings Fiscal 1 095 Fiscal 1994
Quarier Ended 1/31/96 10V31/95 113195 430495 1731795 1003 1/94 T/31/94 4730094
Net Sales 1O, 0% 100.00%: 100.00% 100,005 100.00%: 100, % 1 00.00% 100, 00/%:
FIFO Gross Margin 24.52 1449 25.19 25.98 25.68 24.26 24.68 2443
LIFO (Charge) Credit 15 (.200 (.24) (.16} 61 (.12 {.18) (.33}
LIFD Gross Margin 24.67 24.29 24.95 25.82 26.29 24.14 14.50 24.10
Expenses:
S.G & A 16,868 16,13 14.69 16,23 17.20 15.15 14.53 14.75
Store Opening Cosis Fi Q2 58 53 1.03 67 45 33
Depreciation 249 2:20 1.81 2.02 2.07 1.82 1.59 1.72
Employee Retirement Plans 46 6 67 H3 B2 B4 B0 A0
Innerest 63 32 43 e ) 42 3T 43 60
Total Expenses 21.24 20.43 18.20 20.18 21.54 18.85 17.84 18.40
Pre-Tax Eamings 343 3.86 6.75 5.64 4.75 3.29 666 3.70
Income Tax Provision 34.36 15.61 36.34 36.10 1446 33,14 35,00 35.00
MNet Earnings 2.25% 2.49% 4. 30% 3.60% 311% 3.43% 4.33% 3.70%

33



Wilhaim A, Andre John M. Belk Gordon E Cadwgan Carel A, Farmer Leonard (

i

Robert L. Strickland Robert L. Tillman

B Malone

LIRS AR AT

Petro Kulynveh

Lowe’s Board of Directors

William A. Andres

Director since 1986, age 69. Chairman of Governance Committee, Member of Compensation Committee and Executive
Committee of the Company. Previously Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer (1976-1983), Chairman of
Executive Committee (1983-1985) of Dayton Hudson Corporation (Retail Chain), Minneapolis, Minn. (Mr. Andres
retired in September, 1985.) Other directorships: Jostens, Inc., Minneapolis, Minn., since 1985; Hannaford Bros.,
Scarborough, Me., since 1986

John M. Belk

Director since 1986, age 76. Member of Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Governance Committee of the
Company. Chairman of the Board, Belk Stores Services, Inc. (Retail Department Stores), Charlotte, N.C,, since 1980

Other directorships: Coca-Cola Bottling Company Consolidated, Charlotte, N.C., since 1972; Chaparral Steel

Midlothian, Tex., since 1987

Gordon E. Cadwgan

Director since 1961, age 82. Chairman of Audit Committee, Member ol Compensation Committee and Governance
Committee of the Company. Cadwgan Associates, Inc. (Trustee and Financial Consuliant), alliliated with Tucker
Anthony, Inc., Boston, Mass., since 1979. Other directorships: Third Century Fund, Inc., Providence, R.1, since 1981

Carol A. Farmer

Director since 1994, age 51. Member of Audit Committee, Governance Committee and Government/Legal Alfairs Com-
mittee of the Company. President, Carol Farmer Associates, Inc. (Trend Forecasting and Consulting), Boca Raton, Fla.,
since 1985. Other directorships: The Sports Authority, Inc., Ft. Lauderdale, Fla., since 1995

Leonard G. Herring
Director since 1956, age 68. President and Chiel Executive Ollicer since 1978, Member ol Executive Committee and

Government/Legal Affairs Committee of the Company. Other directorships: First Union Corporation, Charlotte, N.C.,
since 1986

Petro Kulynych

Director since 1952, age 74. Member of Audit Committee, Executive Committee and Government/Legal Allairs Committee
of the Company, having previously served as Managing Director (1978-1983). (Mr. Kulynych retired in December, 1983.)
(her |;1|r;_L|L5|3.|1|[1:‘ Local Board. Wachovia Bank l1| North Carolina, N.A., North Wilkeshoro, N.C., since 1988: Carolina

Motor Club, Inc

Russell B. Long

Director since 1987, age 77. Chairman of Government/Legal Affairs Committee, Member ol Compensation Committee
and Governance Committee of the Company. Partner, Long Law Firm (Attorneys-at-Law), Washington, D.C , since 1988
Other directorships: Catalyst Vidalia Corp., Vidalia, La., since 1989, Other: Member of Advisory Board, Metropolitan Life
Insurance Company, New H-'-rL, MY, since 1992: United S1ates Senator 1948-1987: Member, Senate Finance Commitlee
1952-1987 (Chairman 1965-1981)
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Claudine B. Malone

Director since 1995, age 59. Member of Audit Committee, Governance Committee and Government/Legal Alfairs Commit-
tee of the Company. President, Financial & Management Consulting, Inc., McLean, Va., since 1984. Other directorships:
Chairman, Federal Reserve Bank, Richmond, Va., since 1996 (Member since 1994); Dell Computer Corporation, Austin, Tex.,
since 1993; Hannaford Brothers, Scarborough, Me., since 1991; Hasbro, Inc., Pawtucket, R.1., since 1992; Houghton
Mifflin, Boston, Mass., since 1982; LaFarge Corporation, Reston, Va., since 1994; The Limited, Inc., Columbus, Oh., since
1982; Mallinckrodt Group Inc., St. Louis, Mo., since 1994; Penn Mutual Life Insurance Company, Philadelphia, Pa., since
1978; SAIC-Science Applications International Corporation, San Diego, Calil., since 1993; Union Pacilic Resources
Corporation, Fort Worth, Tex., since 1995.

Robert G. Schwartz

Director since 1973, age 68. Chairman of Compensation Committee, Member of Audit Committee and Governance
Committee of the Company. Director of Metropolitan Life Insurance Company, New York, N.Y., since 1980, having
previously served as Chairman of the Board (1983-1993), President and Chiel Executive Officer (1989-1993) of that
company. (Mr. Schwartz retired in March, 1993.) Other directorships: Potlatch Corporation, San Francisco, Calil., since
1973: Comsat Corporation, Washington, D.C., since 1986; Mobil Corporation, New York, N.Y., since 1987, The Reader’s
Digest Association, Inc., Pleasantville, N.Y., since 1989; Consolidated Edison Company of New York, New York, N.Y,,
since 1989: CS First Boston, Inc., New York, N.Y., since 1989: Lone Star Industries, Inc., Stamford, Conn., since 1994; Ascent
Entertainment Group, Inc., Denver, Colo., since 1995.

Robert L. Strickland

Director since 1961, age 65. Chairman of the Board since 1978, Chairman of Executive Committee and Member of Government/
Legal Affairs Committee of the Company. Other directorships: Deputy Chairman, Federal Reserve Bank, Richmond, Va,,
since 1996; T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc., Baltimore, Md., since 1991; Hannalord Bros., Scarborough, Me., since 1994

Robert L. Tillman

Director since 1994, age 52. Senior Executive Vice President and Chiefl Operating Officer of the Company since 1994,
having previously served as Executive Vice President — Merchandising (1991-1994), Member of Executive Committee and
Government/Legal Affairs Committee of the Company. Other directorships: Wachovia Bank of North Carolina, N.A.,
Winston-Salem, N.C., since 1994; Home Center Institute, Chicago, 11l since 1994,

Lowe’s Leadership

Executive Officers and Management

Gregory M. Bridgeford — Senior Vice President and General Merchandise Manager

J. Gregory Dodge — Senior Vice President, Real Estate/Engineering & Construction

Richard D. Elledge - Senior Vice President, Chiel Accounting Officer and Assistant Secretary
Lee Herring - Senior Vice President, Logistics

Leanard G, Herring - President and Chiefl Executive Officer

William L. Irons — Senior Vice President, Management Information Services

W, Cliff Oxford - Senior Vice President, Corporate and Human Development

Dale C. Pond - Senior Vice President, Marketing

Larry D. Stone — Executive Vice President, Store Operations

Roben L. Strickland — Chairman of the Board

Roben L. Tillman - Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer

William C. Warden, Jr. - Exccutive Vice President, General Counsel, Secretary and Chief Administrative Officer
Gregory J. Wessling - Senior Vice President and General Merchandise Manager

Corporate Officers, Regional Staff and Departmental Management

Frank A. Beam — Regional Vice President Kenneth A, Neal - Assistant Treasurer

Kevin D. Bennett — Senior Corporate Counsel and Assistant Secretary James C. Newstadt — Vice President, Advertising

Kenneth W, Black, Jr. - Controller Robert G. Oberosler - Vice President, Loss Prevention and Safety
Douglas L. Bowen - Vice President, Contructor Yards William D. Pelon - Regional Vice President

Mick Canter — Regional Vice President Edward C. Seemann — Vice President, Systems Development
Jeffrey E. Gray - Senior Corporate Counsel and Assistanl Secretary David E. Shelion — Vice President, Sales Cperations

R. Vaughn Hayes — Vice President, Store Planning Robent D. Skees — Vice President, Internal Audit

Duane E. Hiemenz — Regional Vice President John W. Vining, Jr. - Vice President. Adminisiration

Perry G. Jennings — Vice President, Human Resources William L. White — Regional Vice President

Amold N. Lakey - Vice President. Credit Managemen! Karen R. Worley — Assistant Controller

W, Nathan Mitchell — Assistant Secretary, Senior Director of Accounting
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35-Year Review

LIFD accounling
Fiscal Years End January 31, of Following Calendar Year 5-Year Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
Excapt Fiscal Years Prior o 1978 Which Ended July 31, CGR 1995 1984 1993 1992 1991
Stores and People
1 Number of Stores 3.4% 365 336 an 303 306
2 Square Foolage 2.7 23945111 18,604,368 14,174,889 9975537 8,016,136
3 Number of Employees 234 44 546 37,555 28,843 21,269 18,368
4 Custoners Served (Thousands) 22.1% 146,957 122,847 92,932 80,461 64,284
§ Average Customer Purchase $48.15 $49.74 £48.83 $47.80 $47.54
Comparative Income Statement (Thousands)
6 Total Sales 20.1% §7.075,442 $6,110,521 $4,538,001 53,846 418 53,056,247
T Depreciation 23.9 150,011 109,647 80,530 69,820 58,208
B LIFD Credit (Charge) MM (8.250) (435) (15,524) 9,514) (5,979)
9 Store Restructuring - - - - - 71,268
10 Operating Income! 26.1 540,158 481,051 207,132 211,31 80,187
11 Pre-Tax Eamings? 28.6 352,107 343,531 198,324 125,892 4,951
12 Taxes on Income 34.0 126,080 118,971 66,538 41,172 (1,536)
13 Net Eamings 26.0 226,027 223,560 131,786 84,720 6,487
14 Cash Dividends Paid 95 30,471 27,433 23,57 21,153 20,020
15 Earnings Retained 30.5% S 195556 § 196127 § 107731 § 63554 § (13,533)
Dollars Per Share (Weighted Average Number of Shares)
16 Sales 18.3% $44.10 $39.44 $30.79 §26.32 £20.93
17 Earnings 24.2 1.41 1.44 .89 .58 04
18 Cash Dividends 1.9 19 18 A6 14 14
19 Earnings Retained 28.5 1.22 1.27 73 A3 NM
20 Shareholders’ Equity 17.6% £10.33 £ 016 $ 583 $ 5.02 § 4.58
Strategic Profit Model?
21 Asset Turnover (Sales Per Asset Dollar) 5 2.28 5§ 278 § 282 § 267 § 254
22 Return on Sales (Net Eamings as Percent of Sales) % 3209 x 366% x 2900 x 220% x .21%
23 Raturn on Assets =728% =1015% =0819% = 58800 = .54%
24 Leverage Factor (Asset Dollars Per Equity Dollar) ® 2.19 =% 2.52 x 219 x 2.16 % 1.76
25 Return on Shareholders’ Equity =1592% =2559% =1797% =126/ = .95%
Comparative Balance Sheel (Thousands)
26 Total Current Assets 21.1% §1,603,684 $1,557,168 &§1,083907 § 745554 § 770,078
27 Cash and ShortJerm Investments 279 171,297 268,474 108,468 54,849 30,814
28 Accounts Receivable — Net 33 113,483 109,214 48,500 53,288 115,739
28 Inventories (Lower of Cost or Market) 22.4 1,267,077 1,132,282 853,707 594,185 602,795
30 Other Current Assets 29.0 32,659 29,069 60,932 34,710 14,275
31 Fixed Assets 28.0 1,858,274 1,397,713 1,020,234 787,197 612,955
32 Other Assets 34 53,368 67,652 57,099 52 856 46,845
33 Total Assets 24.2 3,556,386 3,105,892 2,201,648 1,608,877 1441228
34 Total Current Liabilities 23.0 949,931 945,893 681,176 499,634 588,951
35 Accounts Payable 28.5 655,399 675,436 467,278 330,584 307.814
36 Other Current Liabilities 27.7 151,494 134,335 81,765 72,626 61,400
37 Long-Term Debt (Excluding Current Portion) 40.3 B66,183 681,184 592,333 313,562 113,650
38 Total Liabilities 29.6 1,899,671 1,686,102 1,327,979 875,657 772,674
39 Shareholders’ Equity 19.4% 51,656,715 $1,419890 § 873669 § 733,220 § 668,554
40 Equity/Long-Term Debt (Excluding Current) 19 2.08 1.47 2.34 5.88
41 Year-End Leverage Factor: Assets/Equity 2.15 2.19 2.52 219 2.16
Shareholders, Shares and Book Value
42 Shareholders of Record, Year-End 11,299 9.765 7.470 7,257 6.216
43 Shares Outstanding, Year-End (Thousands)! 160,918 159,527 147 BBG6 145,946 145,760
44 Weighted Average Shares, Year-End (Thousands) 160,453 154,926 147,398 146,152 146,052
45 Book Value £10.30 $ 8.90 $591 § 5.02 § 459
Stock Price During Year®
46 High (Adjusted for Stock Splits) $36.68 541.38 $31.00 §14.38 $10.35
47 Low (Adjusted for Stock Splits) S26.00 827.75 §13.32 $ 8.00 $575
48 Closing Price December 31 £33.50 $34.75 £29.75 §12.07 $ 853
Price Earnings Ratio
49 High 28 29 35 25 233
50 Low 18 19 15 14 129




Supplemental Information

FIFD aceounting
Base Year Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Stock splits and stock dividends
Fiscal 1990 1984 1980 1977 1970 1961 since 1960
309 248 214 175 64 15 1 W A 100% stock dividend, effective April 5, 1958,
7,061,925 20980,000 1,998,239 1,570,000 379,653  71.680 2 {which had the net effect of a 2-for-1 stock spilt).
;2-555 10,727 5,950 5,274 1,670 39 3 B A 2-for-1 stock split, effective November 16, 1960,
142 23,938 11,376 8,224 2,729 651 4 ;
: ! ; f I A 508 stock dividend, effective November 30, 1971,
$5233  S$7055  STI67  $7227  S4T.00  $4785 6 v mdaded
W A 33V4% stock dividend, effective July 25, 1672,
$2,833,108 $1688,738 $883,614 $504,358 S$128491 $31,128 6 (which had the net effect of a 4-for-3 stock splt).
1,431 14,805 10,320 6,212 1,221 133 7 I A 50% stock dividend, eNective June 2, 1978, (which
688 2,686 (6,686) - - S | had the net effect of a 3-for-2 stock Spit)
169,101 136,195 50800 5285 11487 2,185 1: B A 3-f0r-2 stock spil, efective November 2, 1981,
100251 119076 36277 42487 9938 1890 11 : ) i"m bR
20,164 57633 17386 2105 5068 956 12 hetpiripinnlshdetoetikon
71,087 61,443 18,891 21,431 4,870 94 13 e
19,334 11,600 7,813 2,735 844 102 14 B8 A 2-or-1 stock spill, eflective Apell 4, 1994,
§ 51753 § 49843 $11,078 $ 18696 § 402 § 832 15
I
$19.03  S1165  $679  S456  $102  §.26 16 it et
A8 42 15 16 04 o1 " Pretax samings phus dapreciation piis interest
13 .08 06 02 0 — 18 ? Badore mdraordinary ilem in 1986 and cumailative
a5 34 09 14 03 01 19 uffac_r on priof years of @ change in accounting
$ 4.59 § 235 $1.30 $ .87 $ .20 $04 20 principl 0 1067,
3 Asset Tumnover - Total Sales divided by Baginning Assets
Retu Sales - Total Prodit divided
$247 $324 $295 §$301 $300 §332 21 s b i el
¥ 251% x JB4% x 2.14% x 361% % 3T79% x 3.00% 22 Asssls
=620% =179 =631% =10840 =11.7200 = 9.96% 23 Leverage Factor - Beginning Assets divided by
* 1.78 ®x 1.79 * 1.90 ® 210 * 1.99 ®x 257 24 Beginning Equity
=11.01% =21.10% =1199% =2271% =23.34% =25.50% 25 Ratum on Shareholders’ Equity - Total Profit divided
by Beginning Equity
§ 616461 $432.370 209,756  $186,198  $3B.878  $9,305 26 Riprd sl st
50,144 84,204 15,567 13,324 4,658 1,209 27 1963 — Traasury Stock purchase
96,354 97,319 68,172 76,162 14,887 3,108 28 February 2, 1982 — 778,018 common shares issued
460,804 248268 125,104 96,164 19,040 4801 29 to ESOP
9,158 2.579 913 548 293 ar 30 Febeuary B, 1983 — 2 917 million common shares
541,464 195237 91,399 60,210 10,390 1229 3 sokd in public issuance.
45127 6,501 573 401 148 1301 32 Dctober 10, 1985 — 833,373 common shares lssued
1,203,052 634,108 301,728 246809 49416 11,835 33 0 ESOF. _
397676 189418 80781 87709 21212 4922 M il pbanstaituig
186,880 125,003 52,003 60,324 15,178 3,187 35 g :
4578 64415 28778 27385 6034 1735 36 e et
159,204 92,488 51,929 46,244 3315 1781 37 1987 — Treasury Stock purchase
520,380 292,760 132,710 133,953 24,521 6,792 38 1988 — Treasury Stock purchase
§ 682672 5341348  S169.018  S112,857 524,889 $5043 39 1990 — Shares purchased and retired
4,29 3.69 3.25 244 751 281 40 o
Lo 1.86 1.79 2.19 199 23 @ June 27, 1884 — 1035 millon common shares sold
in public issuance
6,261 6,372 4,620 4588 2117 42 B e 0 O SR SO 8 ECP
145838 144092 130220 130,220 126232 120,000 43 SRS CUMINILIOISE Bl 0 fhr ot Sch
148,856 144992 130,220 130,220 126232 120,000 44 stz
; : ! ! 8000 commod shares from 3% comvertible notes
$ 4.68 §235 §1.30 § 87 5§ 2 § 04 4 4,000 comman shares issued 1o dinciors
1865 — 1,182 000 common shares issued (o ESOP
$1241  $741  $249  $328 $1.16 =~ J3030.0RgNAGE STk i e W e e ey
$ 4.60 $ 4.07 $ 1.34 $218 § 62 — & —
a7 from 3%
$613 §$619 $180  $300 S 103 " N SR Ao
— Ongoing employes option transactions.
26 17 17 20 L7 - A9 ¥ Siock price source; The Wal Streer Jowmal
10 10 g 13 16 - & prollpsiobrsiyis
= compound growth rate
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Investor Information

Stock Transfer Agent & Registrar

Wachovia Bank of North Carolina, N.A.

P.O. Box 3001

Winston-Salem, NC 27102

Information contact:

Christopher A. Spillare

(910) 770-5822 or (800) 6334236
Dividend Disbursing Agent

Wachovia Bank of North Carolina, N.A.

P.0O. Box 3001

Winston-Salem, NC 27102

Information contact:

Virginia C. Lakey

(910) 770-6116 or (800) 6334236
Dividend Reinvesting Agent

Wachovia Bank of North Carolina, N.A.

P.O. Box 3001

Winston-Salem, NC 27102

Information contact:

Deborah N, Keaton

(910) 7704402 or (800) 6334236

Dividend Policy

Lowe's has paid a cash dividend each quarter since
becoming a public company in 1961.

Dividend Declaration Dates
Usually the middle of April, July, October and
January
Dividend Payment Dates
Usually the last of April, July, October and January
Lowe’s Telephone Numbers

Telephone (910) 651-4000
FAX (910) 6514766

Lowe’s Addresses

Mailing: P.O. Box 1111, North Wilkeshoro, NC 28656

Street: State Highway 268 East (Elkin Highway)
North Wilkeshoro, NC 28659

E-Mail: webeditor@lowes.com

Web: htpfwww. lowes.com

Annual Meeting Date

May 31, 1996 at 10:00 AM, Lowe’s Corporate Offices

Lowe’s Common Stock
Ticker Symbol: LOW

Listed:

New York Stock Exchange
20 Broad Street

MNew York, NY 10005

Pacific Stock Exchange
301 Pine Street
San Francisco, CA 94104

London Stock Exchange
Old Broad Street
London, ECN1HP England

General Counsel
William C. Warden, Jr.
Executive Vice President, Chiel Administrative Officer
(910) 6514497

Certified Public Accountants

Deloitte & Touche Lip
1100 Carillon
Charlote, NC 28202
(704) 372-3560

Shareholder Services

Shareholders’ and security analysts’ inquiries should be
directed to:

Clarissa S. Felts — Director Investor Research

(910) 6514254

T. Carson Anderson, IV — Manager Investor Relations
(910) 651-4385

For copies of linancial information:

(910) 6514703

Lowe’s Profile

Lowe’s Companies, Inc. is the world’s second
largest home improvement retailer, serving the
do-it-yoursell home improvement, home decor,
home electronics, and home construction markets.

Lowe’s 365 stores serve customers in 23 states
located mainly in the East. In 1995 our average
store did $19.9 million in sales. Our big stores
averaged $23.4 million in sales.

At year-end, our retail sales space totaled
approximately 24 million square feet. Our employ-
ees numbered 44,546.

Lowe’s has been a publicly owned company
since October 6, 1961. Our stock has been
listed on the New York Stock Exchange since
December 19, 1979; on the Pacific Stock Exchange
since January 26, 1981; and on the London Stock
Exchange since October 6, 1981. Shares are traded
under the ticker symbol LOW.

LOMES
Companies. he.

PO Box 1111, North Wilkesboro, NC 28656
(910) 651-4000
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